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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 

The results of our audit of the Pierce County Housing Authority are summarized below in 

accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

Financial Statements 

We issued an unmodified opinion on the fair presentation of the basic financial statements in 

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 

(GAAP). 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting: 

 Significant Deficiencies: We identified deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 

control over financial reporting that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 

We noted no instances of noncompliance that were material to the financial statements of the 

Housing Authority. 

Federal Awards 

Internal Control over Major Programs: 

 Significant Deficiencies: We reported no deficiencies in the design or operation of internal 

control over major federal programs that we consider to be significant deficiencies. 

 Material Weaknesses: We identified no deficiencies that we consider to be material 

weaknesses. 

We issued an unmodified opinion on the Housing Authority’s compliance with requirements 

applicable to its major federal program. 

We reported no findings that are required to be disclosed in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a). 
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Identification of Major Federal Programs 

The following program was selected as a major program in our audit of compliance in accordance 

with the Uniform Guidance. 

CFDA No. Program or Cluster Title 

14.871 

14.871 

Housing Voucher Cluster – Section  8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

COVID-19 – Housing Voucher Cluster – Section 8 Housing Choice 

Vouchers 

The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs, as prescribed by 

the Uniform Guidance, was $959,956. 

The Housing Authority did not qualify as a low-risk auditee under the Uniform Guidance. 

SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

See Finding 2020-001. 

SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED 

COSTS 

None reported. 
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SCHEDULE OF AUDIT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

2020-001 The Housing Authority’s internal controls over accounting and 

financial reporting were inadequate for ensuring accurate and 

timely reporting 

Background 

Pierce County Housing Authority (Housing Authority) management, state and 

federal agencies, and the public rely on the information included in financial 

statements and reports to make decisions. Housing Authority management is 

responsible for designing and following internal controls that provide reasonable 

assurance financial reporting is reliable. 

The Housing Authority provides housing opportunities for eligible Pierce County 

residents. The Housing Authority owns and manages nine apartment complexes 

and provides housing assistance through the Low-Income Public Housing program. 

The Housing Authority’s operating expenses were roughly $37.3 million in 2020, 

which included $29.4 million of housing assistance payments.  

In the previous audit report dated June 22, 2021, we issued a finding listing 

significant deficiencies in the Housing Authority’s accounting and financial 

reporting internal controls. When combined, the following deficiencies affected the 

Housing Authority’s ability to ensure accurate and timely reporting:  

 The Housing Authority relied on a consultant for preparing financial 

statements and reporting, and management did not provide adequate 

oversight and review. 

 The Housing Authority had duplicate accounting systems, which made it 

more difficult for staff to identify and resolve variances in a timely manner. 

 The Housing Authority’s secondary review of the financial statements was 

inadequate for detecting and preventing errors before submitting the annual 

financial report for audit.  

The Housing Authority has taken action to resolve the issue of duplicate accounting 

systems. However, it has not adequately resolved the remaining deficiencies we 

identified in the prior audit.  
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Government Auditing Standards requires the State Auditor’s Office to 

communicate significant deficiencies as a finding. The Applicable Laws and 

Regulations section below defines the standards for significant deficiencies. 

Description of Condition 

In the current audit, we identified the following deficiencies in internal controls. 

When taken together, they represent a significant deficiency: 

 In fiscal year 2020, the Housing Authority had not been able to hire a

full-time Finance Director. As a result, the Housing Authority contracted

with a consultant to act as an interim Finance Director and prepare its 2020

financial statements. The Housing Authority continues to rely on the

consultant for preparing financial statements and reporting, and

management does not provide adequate oversight and review.

 The Housing Authority’s secondary review of the financial statements was

inadequate for detecting and preventing errors before submitting the

annual financial report for audit.

Cause of Condition 

The Housing Authority has not established an effective process to oversee 

financial activity reporting or to perform a secondary review of financial 

statements.  

Effect of Condition 

Our audit found financial statement errors and omissions, including misstatements 

and inaccurate presentation of financial statements and supplementary schedules. 

However, our audit did not find material errors. The Housing Authority corrected 

most of the errors identified during the audit. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the Housing Authority continue to strengthen internal controls 

over its financial systems and process for preparing the financial statements. 

These controls should include: 

 Providing adequate oversight of financial reporting and performing a

secondary review of financial statements

 Providing employees with the training and information they need to

perform their duties effectively. This includes training employees on how
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to conduct a meaningful review of financial information and establishing 

a proper cutoff for preparing and recording journal entries.  

 Producing adequate documentation to support financial statement 

balances  

Housing Authority’s Response 

The Authority agrees with the finding and intends to correct the condition by 

intensifying our efforts to bring the financial skills in-house, hire a local CPA firm 

familiar with Washington state and Public Housing Authorities, require a minimum 

number of training hours for the finance staff, and use the tools made available 

through the SAO to minimize errors in financial reports. 

Auditor’s Remarks 

We appreciate the Housing Authority’s commitment to resolve the issues 

identified above and emphasize the importance of establishing effective internal 

control over accounting and financial reporting. We will follow up on the status 

of this finding during our next audit. 

Applicable Laws and Regulations 

Budgeting, Accounting and Reporting System (BARS) manual, Internal Control 

section 3.1.3, states in part: 

Purpose and Definition of Internal Controls 

Internal control is defined by the Committee of Sponsoring 

Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), in standards 

adopted by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants 

and by the Federal Office of Management and Budget as follows: 

Internal control is a process – affected by those charged with 

governance, management and other personnel designed to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the achievement of objectives in the 

following categories: 

 Effectiveness and efficiency of operations 

 Compliance with applicable laws and regulations 

 Reliability of financial reporting 

Management and the governing body are responsible for the 

government’s performance, compliance and financial reporting. 
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Therefore, the adequacy of internal control to provide reasonable 

assurance of achieving these objectives is also the responsibility of 

management and the governing body. 

The governing body has ultimate responsibility for ensuring adequate 

controls to achieve objectives, even though primary responsibility has 

been delegated to management. Since management and the governing 

body are assumed to work in harmony, both parties are collectively 

referred to as “management” throughout the rest of this section. 

Controls over Financial Reporting 

This objective refers to fair presentation of financial statements and 

required schedules in all material respects in accordance with the stated 

basis of accounting . . . 

Preparation of the annual report – Controls should ensure that financial 

statements and required schedules are properly compiled and prepared 

from source accounting records. Controls should also ensure correct 

presentation of statements and schedules . . . 

Controls over Financial Reporting 

This objective refers to fair presentation of financial statements and 

required schedules in all material respects in accordance with the stated 

basis of accounting. 

In meeting this objective, the government should have controls that 

accomplish the following key functions: 

 Identification of financial events – Controls should ensure 

financial events and transactions are properly identified and 

recorded. 

 Properly applying accounting standards – Controls should 

ensure correct criteria and methodology is applied when 

accounting for financial events. When the correct method of 

accounting for or reporting a transaction is unclear, the 

government should seek clarification by performing  research,  

contracting  for  accounting assistance, or communicating with 

the State Auditor’s Office or standard setting bodies. 

 Correctly accounting for all financial events – Controls should 

ensure that: 

 Only valid transactions are recorded and reported. 

 All transactions occurred during the period are recorded 

and reported. 
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 Transactions are recorded and reported at properly valued 

and calculated amounts. 

 Recorded and reported transactions accurately reflect legal 

rights and obligations. 

 Transactions are recorded and reported in the account and 

fund to which they apply. 

 Preparation of the annual report – Controls should ensure 

that financial statements and required schedules are properly 

compiled and prepared from source accounting records. 

Controls should also ensure correct presentation of 

statements and schedules. 

Controls and processes should generate adequate documentation to 

demonstrate achievement of objectives. This is not only important 

for audit, oversight and public records purposes, but also to enable 

effective monitoring of controls over financial reporting by 

management. 

Government Auditing Standards, December 2011 Revision, paragraph 4.23 

states: 

4.23 When performing GAGAS financial audits, auditors should 

communicate in the report on internal control over financial 

reporting and compliance, based upon the work performed, (1) 

significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control; 

(2) instances of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws or 

regulations that have a material effect on the audit and any other 

instances that warrant the attention of those charged with 

governance; (3) noncompliance with provisions of contracts or grant 

agreements that has a material effect on the audit; and (4) abuse that 

has a material effect on the audit.  

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Codification of 

Statements on Auditing Standards, section 265 – Communicating Internal 

Controls Related Matter Identified in Audit, paragraph 7, states: 

For purposes of generally accepted auditing standards, the following 

terms have the meanings attributed as follows: 

Material weakness. A deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 

in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be 

prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. 
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Significant deficiency. A deficiency, or a combination of 

deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material 

weakness yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. 

Government Auditing Standards, July 2018 Revision, paragraphs 6.40 and 6.41 

establish reporting requirements related to significant deficiencies or material 

weaknesses in internal control, instances of fraud, and noncompliance with 

provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, or grant agreements. 

The American Institute of Certified Public Accountants defines significant 

deficiencies and material weaknesses in its Codification of Statements on Auditing 

Standards, section 265, Communicating Internal Control Related Matters Identified 

in an Audit, paragraph 7. 
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

This schedule presents the status of findings reported in prior audit periods.  

Audit Period: January 1, 2020 through 

December 31, 2020 

Report Ref. No.: 

1028112 

F

i

n

d
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n
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e

f

. 

N

o

.

: 

2

0

1

9

-

0

0
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Finding Caption: The Housing Authority’s internal controls over accounting and financial 

reporting were inadequate to ensure accurate and timely reporting. 

Background: 

a)  The Housing Authority relied on a consultant for financial statement preparation 

and reporting, without adequate oversight and review. 

b)  Staff members did not use the accounting system to perform bank reconciliations, instead 

using an off-the-shelf software to reconcile cash and investments.  These duplicate 

systems made it more difficult to identify and resolve variances in a timely manner. 

c)  The Housing Authority’s secondary review of the financial statements was inadequate 

to detect and prevent errors before submitting the annual financial report for audit. 

Status of Corrective Action: (check one)   

☐ Fully 

Corrected 

☒ Partially 

Corrected 
☐ Not Corrected 

☐ Finding is considered no 

longer valid 
 

 

Corrective Action Taken: a) Financial statement preparation and reporting continue to be 

performed by a consultant that is nationally recognized as an expert in Public Housing 

Authorities. Beginning 1-5-21 the monthly reports are presently reviewed by the new PCHA ED 

who has a financial background.  In 2020 the Board of Commissioners formed a Finance 

Committee that meet before each Board meeting to review financials.  The Authority continues 

to search for an experienced Controller. 

b) Staff attempted to use accounting system software with little success and continues to use the 

off-the shelf-software together with electronically documented, manually prepared 

reconciliations, separating cash management from reconciliation. The process is reviewed and 

checked for accuracy by the acting CFO. We believe that with the assistance of an outside CPA 

firm in compiling and filing financial reports has minimized these issues. 
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Audit Period:  

January 1, 2020 through 

December 31, 2020 

Report Reference No.: 

1028112 

Finding Ref. No.: 

2019-002 

CFDA Number(s): 

14.871 

Federal Program Name and Granting Agency: 

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers, Office of 

Public and Indian Housing, Department of Housing 

and Urban Development 

Pass-Through Agency Name: 

N/A 

Finding Caption: The Housing Authority did not have adequate controls in place to ensure 

compliance with federal program requirements. 

Background: 

a)  The Housing Authority did not have controls in place to verify that costs allocated through 

the cost allocation plan were for allowable operating costs of the program. 

b) The Housing Authority was unable to account for program activity and track administrative 

fees. 

c) The Housing Authority did not have controls in place to monitor and ensure that an external 

contractor hired to perform housing inspections, was performing those inspections on a 

timely basis. 

Status of Corrective Action: (check one)   

☒ Fully 

Corrected 

☐ Partially 

Corrected 
☐ Not Corrected 

☐ Finding is considered no 

longer valid 
 

Corrective Action Taken: 

a) PCHA hired a third party to prepare, with supporting documentation, a cost allocation plan 

for the years ‘20 and ’21. It has been implemented and tracked monthly for compliance 

b) Processes and procedures are in place to account for program activity and to track proper 

and correct administrative fees. 

c) The Authority has brought the housing inspection function in-house after March 2020. From 

January through March tracked and documented activity. HUD waived the inspection 

requirement for the duration of 2020.inspection requirement for the duration of 2020. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other 

Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

Board of Commissioners 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

Tacoma, Washington 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 

Pierce County Housing Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related 

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic 

financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2022.  

As discussed in Note 15 to the 2020 financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 

pandemic’s direct or indirect financial impact on the Housing Authority is unknown.  

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Housing 

Authority’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on 

the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 

the Housing Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 

effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management of employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 

material misstatement of the Housing Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or 

detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination 

of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important 

enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.  
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding 

paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 

material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant 

deficiencies may exist that were not identified.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did 

not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  We 

did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying Schedule of 

Audit Findings and Responses as Finding 2020-001 that we consider to be a significant deficiency.   

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Housing Authority’s financial 

statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of the Housing Authority’s 

compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, 

noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 

statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 

an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required 

to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  

HOUSING AUTHORITY’S RESPONSE TO FINDINGS 

The Housing Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the 

accompanying Schedule of Audit Findings and Responses. The Housing Authority’s response was 

not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, 

accordingly, we express no opinion on the response. 

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 

compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 

Housing Authority’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit 

performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Housing 

Authority’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for  
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any other purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not 

limited. It also serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens 

assess government operations. 

 

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

March 24, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT  

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal 

Control over Compliance in Accordance with the Uniform Guidance 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

Board of Commissioners 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

Tacoma, Washington 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL 

PROGRAM 

We have audited the compliance of the Pierce County Housing Authority, with the types of 

compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 

Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the Housing 

Authority’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. The Housing 

Authority’s major federal programs are identified in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and 

Questioned Costs. 

Management’s Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 

conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Housing Authority’s 

major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 

above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 

accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 

Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 

audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 

Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Housing Authority’s compliance 
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with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 

circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 

federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Housing Authority’s 

compliance.  

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of 

compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 

its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2020. 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE  

Management of the Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 

internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 

planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Housing Authority’s internal 

control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect 

on each major federal program in order to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal 

program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 

Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control 

over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing 

Authority’s internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 

over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 

their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal 

control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 

compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of 

compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on 

a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 

requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control 

over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 

first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 

that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies 
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in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 

weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 

our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 

requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 

purpose. However, this report is a matter of public record and its distribution is not limited. It also 

serves to disseminate information to the public as a reporting tool to help citizens assess 

government operations. 

 

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

March 24, 2022 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

Board of Commissioners 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

Tacoma, Washington 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Pierce County Housing Authority, 

as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, 

which collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements as listed on 

page 23. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 

includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 

of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 

Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 

we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 

statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, 

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 

due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 

relevant to the Housing Authority’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Housing Authority’s internal control. 
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Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 

of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 

management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 

for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 

the financial position of the Pierce County Housing Authority, as of December 31, 2020, and the 

changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with 

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Matters of Emphasis 

As discussed in Note 15 to the 2020 financial statements, the full extent of the COVID-19 

pandemic’s direct or indirect financial impact on the Housing Authority is unknown.  Our opinion 

is not modified with respect to this matter.  

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 

management’s discussion and analysis and required supplementary information listed on page 23 

be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part 

of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 

statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain 

limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 

standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 

management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 

consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and 

other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express 

an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not 

provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Supplementary and Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 

collectively comprise the Housing Authority’s basic financial statements as a whole. The 

accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional 
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analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 

Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards 

(Uniform Guidance). The accompanying Financial Data Schedule is supplementary information 

required by HUD. These schedules are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 

information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 

underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The 

information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 

statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such 

information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 

financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 

procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the 

basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

OTHER REPORTING REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING 

STANDARDS 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 

March 24, 2022 on our consideration of the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial 

reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts 

and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our 

testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, 

and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 

report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

in considering the Housing Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

 

Pat McCarthy, State Auditor 

Olympia, WA 

March 24, 2022 
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PIERCE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 

Introduction 
This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Pierce County Housing Authority (Authority) 
provides an introduction and overview to the financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.  
The Pierce County Housing Authority presents this discussion and analysis of its financial performance 
during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020 relative to fiscal year ended 2019, to assist the reader in 
focusing on and understanding significant financial issues.   
 
The primary focus of the Authority’s financial statements is its single enterprise fund encompassing all 
programs and blended component units administered by the Pierce County Housing Authority. Like all 
operating entities, the COVID-19 Pandemic had a significant positive and negative effects on Authority’s 
financial results. The information contained in the MD&A should be considered in conjunction with the 
Authority’s financial statements and related notes to same. 
 

Overview of the Financial Statements 
This overview of the financial statement is intended to inform and introduce the reader to the Authority’s 
financial statements.  The financial statements are comprised of three individual statements.  These 
statements include: 
 

 The Statement of Net Position 
 
 The Statement of Revenues, Expense, and Changes in Net Position 
 
 The Statement of Cash Flows 

 
The Statement of Net Position presents information on the assets, deferred outflows or resources, liabilities, 
and deferred inflows of resources with the differences between them being reported as Net Position.  Over 
time, increases or decreases in Net Position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial situation 
of the Authority is improving or deteriorating.  Net Position is comprised of three individual components: 
 

 Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of capital asset balances net of accumulated depreciation 
less any outstanding balances of related debt associated with the acquisition of these assets. 

 
 Restricted component of net position consists of resources that are restricted by limitations placed 

on these resources by an external source or imposed by law through enabling legislation. 
 

 Unrestricted component of net position represents the remaining resources available that do not 
meet the definition of the above categories.  The unrestricted component of Net Position is basically 
the amount of resources available for future year appropriations. 

 
The Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position reports the operating revenues, 
operating expenses, non-operating revenues, and non-operating expenses of the Authority for the year 
ended December 31, 2020, to determine the net change in net position for the fiscal year. 
 
The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash activities for the fiscal year resulting from operating activities, 
investing activities, non-capital financing activities, and capital and related financing activities.  The net 
result of these activities represents the increase or decrease of the cash equivalent account balance for the 
year ended December 31, 2020. 
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Program Information 
 
Assisted Housing Programs 
 
Low Income Public Housing:  The Authority owns and operates 125 single family, scattered site units in 
Pierce County, Washington.  Under the low-income public housing program, the Authority rents units that 
it owns to low-income households.  The program is operated under an annual contributions contract with 
HUD, and HUD provides operating subsidy and capital funding to enable the Authority to provide housing 
at a rent that is based on a percentage of household income.  The capital fund program is the primary funding 
source for physical improvements to the Authority’s properties.  
 
Capital Funds Grants: Under the same Annual Contributions Contract. The Authority receives additional 
funding from HUD for physical and management improvements to its units within the Low-Income Public 
Housing Program, This program provides funding for large-scale improvements or unplanned emergencies 
that are not covered by the operating subsidy amount previously mentioned 

 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers:  The Authority administers a program of rental assistance payments 
to private and public owners on behalf of eligible low-income families under Section 8 of the Housing and 
Urban Development Act of 1974.  The assistance provides payments covering the difference between the 
maximum rental as approved by HUD on a dwelling unit, and the amount of rent contribution by a 
participating family based on the families documented income.  The objective of the program is to empower 
the tenant with making the choice of where they want to live and assisting them in obtaining affordable 
housing.  The Authority currently administers approximately 2,810 vouchers among the various Section 8 
Programs include Housing Choice Voucher, Homeownership, Non-Elderly Disabled (NED), and Veterans 
Affairs Supportive Housing (VASH) programs.   
 
Rural Development Program:  The Rural Development Housing Program is a 20-unit community 
constructed from low- cost loans provided by the Department of Agriculture benefiting rural residents 
classified as elderly or disabled.  The apartment complex is subsidized by the Department of Agriculture 
through Rural Rental Assistance payments tenants typically pay rent, which is 30 percent of their adjusted 
gross income.  The remaining portion of rent is provided by Rural Development in the form of rental 
assistance.   
 
Non-Assisted/Business Activities Programs:  The Authority owns and manages several additional 
apartment communities throughout Pierce County. Three of larger communities are owned by the following 
blended component units: 
 

 Chateau Rainier Apartments LLC; 
 DeMark Apartments LLC; and 
 Lakewood Village Apartments, LLC 

 
These 656 units provide additional types of affordable housing in the County of Pierce with little public 
financial support, beyond project-based vouchers representing a small percentage of the units. 
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Financial Highlights 
 The Pierce County Housing Authority’s net position increased from $5,504,855 to $9,653,922, an 

increase of $4,149,067 or 75%.  Total assets also increased by $4,827,768 or 18%.  
 

 Total program revenue increased from $35,842,289 to $39,595,932, an increase of $3,753,643 or 
10%.   

 
 Total expenses increased by $2,665,625 or 7%, from $35,812,695 to $38,478,320 for the current 

year.   
 

 The Authority recognized a Special Item in the amount of $2,931,349 that represents restitution 
collected during the current fiscal year. 

 
Housing Authority Activities & Highlights 
The Authority’s overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized below 
based on the information in the current and prior financial statements.  The table below lists the summary 
of net position for the year ended December 31, 2020, and December 31, 2019. 
 

Summary Statement of Net Position 
As of December 31, 2020 and 2019 

 
Category 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 Change $ Change %

Current Assets 9,785,647$    3,570,858$    6,214,789$   174%
Non Current Assets:

Capital Assets 20,988,541$ 22,366,558$ (1,378,017)$ -6%
Other Non-Current Assets 1,096,758$    1,105,762$    (9,004)$          -1%
     Total Assets 31,870,946$ 27,043,178$ 4,827,768$   18%

Deferred Outflow of Resources 225,424$       195,513$       29,911$         15%

Current Liabilities 3,192,988$    1,938,095$    1,254,893$   65%
Non Current Liabilities 19,045,048$ 19,292,792$ (247,744)$     -1%
     Total Liabilities 22,238,036$ 21,230,887$ 1,007,149$   5%

Deferred Inflow of Resources 312,064$       502,949$       (190,885)$     -38%

Unrestricted 5,243,155$    440,588$       4,802,567$   1090%
Restricted 470,071$       175,120$       294,951$       
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,833,044$    4,889,147$    (1,056,103)$ -22%
     Total Net Position 9,546,270$    5,504,855$    4,041,415$   73%  

 
 

Current Assets 
Current assets increased by $6,214,789 during the current year.  Unrestricted cash and investments 
increased by $4,856,218.  The majority of the increase was due to the collection of fraudulent funds 
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collected in the current year and reported as a special item.  In addition, the HCV has reported $892,589 in 
cash restricted for payment of current liabilities due to CARES Act funding received but not yet expensed. 

Noncurrent Assets 
Noncurrent assets decreased from $23,472,320 to $22,085,299 during the current year. The majority of the 
decrease represents the charging of depreciation expense in the current year.  This will be discussed in more 
detail in further sections. 

Current Liabilities 
Current liabilities increased by $1,254,893 from the previous year.  This is primarily due to an increase in 
unearned revenue related to HCV CARES Act funds received but not yet earned.  Other increases include 
other current liabilities in the amount of $247,808 and accounts payable in the amount of $216,114. 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities decreased from a 2019 balance of $19,292,792 to a 2020 balance of $19,045,048, a 
net decrease of $247,744.  Notable variances from the previous year included the following items; 

 The noncurrent portion of the capital debt decreased by $327,309.
 The pension/OPEB liability increased from a 2019 balance of $2,000,670 to a 2020 balance of

$2,197,849.

Net Position 
The net position of the Authority increased by $4,041,415, or 73%, from the previous fiscal year.  This was 
primarily related to the special item charge in the amount of $2,931,349 related to recovery and partial 
restitution from the former, convicted CFO and the reduction of expenses of $1.1 million exclusive of 
Housing Assistance Payments covered by government grants.  Of the total net position, unrestricted net 
position increased by $4,802,567 and restricted net position increased by $294,951. 
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Summary Statement of Revenues & Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 

Category 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 Change $ Change %

Program Revenues:
Tenant Revenue 6,925,554$    6,992,099$    (66,545)$    -1%
Government Operating Grants 31,575,769$ 28,327,531$ 3,248,238$   11%
Capital Grants -$    69,937$     (69,937)$    -100%
Other Revenue 1,094,609$    452,722$    641,887$     142%

  Total Revenue 39,595,932$ 35,842,289$ 3,753,643$   10%

Expenses:
Administration 2,796,727$    2,930,954$    (134,227)$    -5%
Tenant Services 104,954$    141,947$    (36,993)$    -26%
Utilities 860,747$    845,835$    14,912$    2%
Ordinary Maintenance 1,723,512$    2,351,350$    (627,838)$    -27%
General/Insurance Expense 978,837$    892,273$    86,564$    10%
Nonroutine Maintenance -$    97,271$     (97,271)$    -100%
Depreciation 1,593,723$    1,562,450$    31,273$    2%
Housing Assistance Payments 29,438,819$ 25,992,155$ 3,446,664$   13%
Interest Expense 981,001$    998,460$    (17,459)$    -2%
  Total Expenses 38,478,320$ 35,812,695$ 2,665,625$   7%

Nonoperating Revenues:
Interest Income 2,392$    5,252$    (2,860)$     -54%
Gain or Loss on Disposition of Capital Assets (9,938)$    125,886$    (135,824)$    -108%
  Total Nonoperating Revenues (7,546)$    131,138$    (138,684)$    -106%

Excess (Deficiency) Before Special Items 1,110,066$    160,732$    949,334$     591%

Special Item/Casualty Losses 2,931,349$    (3,310,760)$  6,242,109$   -189%

Change in Net Position 4,041,415$    (3,150,028)$  7,191,443$   -228%

Net Position, Beginning of Year 5,504,855$    8,930,917$    (3,426,062)$ -38%

Prior Period Adjustment -$    (276,034)$      276,034$       -100%

Net Position, End of Year 9,546,270$    5,504,855$    4,041,415$   73%
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Results of Operations 
Program revenues of the Authority are generated principally from dwelling rents and HUD grants. The 
Authority’s program revenue increased by $3,753,643 or 10% compared to the previous fiscal year. 
Significant changes in revenue accounts consist of the following items: 

 Government operating grants increased by $3,248,238 due in part to Cares Act Grants.

 Capital grants decreased by $69,937 due to a decrease in capital activity funded through the Capital
Grant Program

 Other revenue increased from $452,722 in 2019 to $1,094,609 in 2020. Revenues related to port in
activity of the HCV program increased by $951,637.

Total expenses increased by $2,665,625.  Significant variances between the years include the following: 

 Administration decreased by $134,227 or 5%.

 Maintenance costs decreased by $627,838 or 27% from the prior year.  The following provided
below gives an analysis of cost categories associated with the decrease:

o Labor and benefits decreased by $100,450;
o Materials decreased by $122,550; and
o Maintenance contracts decreased by $404,838.

 General/insurance expenses increased by $86,565 due primarily to higher insurance costs in the
amount of $177,673. In contrast, other general expenses decreased by $50,798, compensated
absences decreased by $21,862 and bad debt expenses decreased by $23,052.

 Housing assistance payments increased by $3,446,664, or 13%.  This was due to a combination of
increased units leased as well as higher per unit HAP costs. Unit months leased increased by 361
while average HAP costs increased from $825 to $895.

Capital Assets 
As of December 31, 2020, the Authority’s net investment in capital assets was $3,833,044.  This investment 
includes land, building improvements, equipment, and construction in progress, net of accumulated 
depreciation and related debt.  

Category 12/31/2020 12/31/2019 Change $ Change %

Land 5,270,117$      5,270,117$      -$     0%
Buildings 36,062,789$   36,062,789$   -$     0%
Equipment 3,866,538$      3,836,714$      29,824$    1%
Construction in Progress 29,673$     -$    29,673$    N/A
Accumulated Depreciation (24,240,576)$  (22,803,062)$  (1,437,514)$ 6%

  Total Net Fixed Assets 20,988,541$   22,366,558$   (1,378,017)$ -6%
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The increase in equipment and construction is due to office reconfiguration and data processing upgrades 
funded by Cares Act spending in the HCV program. 
 
Additional information on the Authority’s capital assets can be found on Note #6 – CAPITAL ASSETS, 
starting on page 19. 
 
Long-Term Debt Activity 
There are various debt requirements related to projects and programs of the agency. Debt was reduced by 
$321,913. There was no additional debt incurred during the year. 
 
Additional information on the Authority’s long-term debt can be found in Note #8 NONCURRENT 
LIABILITIES starting on page 20. 
  

Subsequent Event 
HUD has renewed the Housing Choice Voucher Program and estimated the funding levels for the 2021 
calendar at $30,713,000.  The operating subsidy for the Low Rent Housing Program is estimated to be 
funded at $317,403. 
 
The estimated amount of funding for the 2021 calendar year for the Housing Choice Voucher Program will 
include the proration of administrative fees at 82% and HAP funding at 100% with an inflation factor of 
4.5%  
   

Request for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s accountability for all 
those interested. 
 
If you should have additional questions regarding the financial information, you can contact our office in 
writing at the following address:   
 

Pierce County Housing Authority 
Attn:  Jim Stretz, Executive Director  
Tacoma, Washington 
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ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 
  Unrestricted 6,873,798$          
  Restricted 2,495,958            
Accounts Receivable (Net of Allowance) 144,610               
Prepaid Items 259,885               
Inventory 11,396                 

Total Current Assets 9,785,647            

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Land & Construction in Progress 5,299,790            
Other Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 15,688,751          
  Total Capital Assets 20,988,541          
Other Non-Current Assets
Notes, Loans, and Mortgages Receivable 1,096,758            
  Total Other Non-Current Assets 1,096,758            

Total Noncurrent Assets 22,085,299          

Total Assets 31,870,946          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions & OPEB 225,424               

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 225,424               

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable 863,070             
Wages/Payroll Payable 48,782               
Deferred Revenue 1,005,328          
Accrued Employee Leave (current) 120,750             
Interest Payable 78,741               
Tenant Security Deposits 283,811             
Bonds and Notes Payble (current) 327,439             
Other 465,067             

Total Current Liabilities 3,192,988          

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Accrued Employee Leave (net of current) 17,801               
Bonds and Notes Payable (net of current) 16,828,059        
Net Pension Liability 683,782             
Total OPEB Liability 1,514,067          
Other 1,339                 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 19,045,048        

Total Liabilities 22,238,036        

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions & OPEB 312,064             

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 312,064             

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 3,833,044          
Restricted for:

Housing Assistance Payments 114,650             
Other 355,421             

Unrestricted 5,243,155          

Total Net Position 9,546,270$        

 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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OPERATING REVENUES
Tenant Revenue 6,925,554$        
Operating Grants 31,575,769        
Other Revenue 1,094,609          

Total Operating Revenues 39,595,932        

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative 2,796,727          
Tenant Services 104,954             
Utilities 860,747             
Maintenance 1,723,512          
Insurance/General 978,837             
Housing Assistance Payments 29,438,819        
Depreciation 1,593,723          

Total Operating Expenses 37,497,319        

Net Operating Income (Loss) 2,098,613          

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Income 2,392                 
Interest Expense (981,001)            
Gain or Loss on Disposition of Capital Assets (9,938)                

Net Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) (988,547)            

NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE SPECIAL ITEMS 1,110,066          

Special Item 2,931,349          

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 4,041,415          

NET POSITION-BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,504,855          

NET POSITION-END OF YEAR 9,546,270$        

 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash Received from Grantor 32,532,944$            
Cash Received from Tenants 6,981,097                
Cash Received from Misc. Sources 1,086,988                
Cash Payments to Employees (1,342,738)               
Cash Payments to Vendors (5,583,415)               
Cash Payments for Rental Assistance (29,030,246)             

Net Cash Provided in Operating Activities 4,644,630                

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest Received 2,392                       
Net Cash Received on  Mortgages Receivable 9,004                       
Redemption/(Purchase) of Investments 105,565                   

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 116,961                   

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
 FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Interest Paid on Long Term Debt (982,394)                  
Principal Reduction on Long Term Debt (321,914)                  
Property and Equipment Purchased (225,645)                  

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (1,529,953)               

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CASH INVESTING,
 CAPITAL, OR FINANCE ACTIVITIES:

Special Item 2,931,349                
Net Cash Provided by Non-Cash Activities 2,931,349                

Net Increase in Cash 6,162,987                

Cash and Cash Equivalents-Beginning of Year 3,206,769                

Cash and Cash Equivalents-End of Year 9,369,756                

Reconciliation to Cash Accounts:
Cash Equivalents-Unrestricted 6,873,798              
Cash Equivalents-Restricted 2,495,958              

Total Cash Equivalents 9,369,756$              

 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING INCOME TO CASH
 PROVIDED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Net Operating Income 2,098,613$              
Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided
 in Operating Activities:

Depreciation 1,593,723                
Decrease in Accounts Receivable (Operations) 60,798                     
Increase in Prepaid Expenses (218,164)                  
Increase in Accounts Payable 61,044                     
Decrease in Wages/Compensated Absences (1,993)                      
Increase in Tenant Security Deposits 37,954                     
Increase in Unearned Revenue  897,415                   
Increase in Other current Liabilities 247,808                   
Decrease in Other Noncurrent Liabilities (108,950)                  
Decrease in Deferred Inflows (190,885)                  
Decrease in Pension Liability (163,913)                  
Increase in OPEB Liability 361,091                   
Increase in Deferred Outflows (29,911)                    

Net Cash Provided in Operating Activities 4,644,630$              

 
 
 
 
 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

The Pierce County Housing Authority (the Authority) was organized pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington. 
These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied 
to governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Housing Authority's significant 
accounting policies are described in the following notes. 

 

A. Reporting Entity 
 
The purpose of the Authority is to provide safe, decent, sanitary and affordable housing to low income families in 
Pierce County, Washington, and to operate the housing programs in accordance with federal legislation administered 
through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under provisions of the National Housing 
Act of 1937. The Authority was created in 1978 by an act of Pierce County, Washington. 
 
The governing body of the Authority is its Board of Commissioners, which is comprised of six members, five of 
whom are appointed by the Pierce County Executive and ratified by the County Council and one, which is appointed 
by the Authority Board of Commissioners. The Board appoints an Executive Director to administer the affairs of 
the Authority. The Authority is not considered a component unit of Pierce County, as the Board of Commissioners 
independently oversees the Authority's operations and Pierce County is not financially accountable for the 
Authority. Financial accountability is defined as appointment of a majority of the entity’s board and either (a) the 
ability to impose the primary government's will, or (b) the Authority will provide a financial benefit to, or impose 
a financial burden on, the primary government. 
 
On January 26, 2012, the Authority's Board of Commissioners adopted a resolution relating to the organization of 
a nonprofit corporation, Housing Successes, to support the Authority in its goals. On July 10, 2014, the IRS provided 
a final determination of the tax-exempt status of Housing Successes. While considered a component unit of the 
Authority, there was no fiscal activity during the year. 
 
During 2014, the Authority established three separate Limited Liability Companies: Chateau Rainier Apartments 
LLC, DeMark Apartments LLC and Lakewood Village Apartments LLC, for the purpose of debt refunding. The 
refunding occurred in 2015 and the Authority transferred all assets and liabilities to these three separate legal 
entities. The Authority implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 80 Blending Requirements for Certain 
Component units, an amendment of GASB Statement No. 14. This statement requires that "A component unit should 
be included in the reporting entity financial statements using the blended method if the component unit is organized 
as a not-for-profit corporation in which the primary government is the sole corporate member.". These three legally 
separate entities are considered blended component units. Disclosure of these component units are provided in these 
notes to financial statements. 

The accompanying financial statements include all programs, and organizations for which the Board of 
Commissioners is financially accountable. 

 
B. Program Accounting 
 
The accounts of the Authority are organized on the basis of programs, each of which is considered a separate 
accounting entity. The operations of each entity are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts 
that comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, net position, revenues and expenses as 
appropriate. Resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual programs based upon the purposes for 
which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled. The operations of the 

  
 
 

Page 36



PIERCE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

 
Authority combine the two following major programs that account for separate business-type activities. The 
Authority uses sub-accounts within these major programs to account for certain funding streams that require 
separate accounting by State law, HUD regulations or by loan agreements. The two major programs described 
below are combined into a single enterprise fund for reporting purposes. 

 
Assisted Housing Programs 

 

This major program is used to account for the various HUD and other housing assistance programs administered 
by the Authority such as Section 8, Low-Income Public Housing (LIPH) and Rural Development (RD) programs. 
 
Programs Administered for Assisted Housing 
 

Public Housing: This program accounts for low-rent public housing projects developed and operated by the 
Authority. HUD provided development grants to allow the Authority to purchase real estate for use in the program 
and provides operating subsidies and capital improvement grants for ongoing management of the projects. There 
are 125 single family homes being operated in this program. 
 
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Programs: The Section 8 programs provide housing assistance payments for 
up to approximately 2,670 households who live in private and Authority owned housing. These programs were 
authorized by Section 8 of the National Housing Act and provide housing assistance payments to landlords and 
lenders to subsidize rental and mortgage payments for low-income persons. 
 

Rural Development: This program provides for special needs populations in rural areas. Rural Development 
provides both rent subsidies and interest rate subsidies for this specific project which serves 20 elderly or disabled 
low income households. 
 
While dwelling rent is recognized as operating revenues, the major portion of operating revenues in the Assisted 
Housing Programs is the HUD Annual Contributions. These operating grants are reported as operating revenue 
in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. Revenues and expenses related to financing 
or investing activities are treated as non- operating revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses 
and changes in net position. Capital contributions are treated as non-operating revenue. 

 
Affordable Housing Program 
 

This major program is used to account for various business type activity programs administered by the 
Authority that do not have on-going federal subsidies to fund operations. 
 
Programs Administered for Affordable Housing 
 

Apartments: The operation of 8 multi-family housing projects, consisting of 670 units that are financed and 
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises are included in this group. Costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing services to the general public, on a continuing basis, are recovered primarily through 
rental revenues. Revenues and expenses related to financing or investing activities are treated as non-operating 
revenues and expenses in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position. 
 
5H Homeownership: This program accounts for the sale of public housing program homes to current residents. 
Homes sold under this program are transferred from the Assisted Housing Program to the Homeownership 
program sub-account within the Affordable Housing program at its net book value. The proceeds of the sales are 
a combination of cash, for privately financed first mortgages, and second mortgage notes receivable. The 
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Authority holds a "silent second" mortgage that bears no interest. These mortgages are due upon sale of the 
property or at such time as the family can afford to pay at least $50 per month in debt service as determined under 
program guidelines. Since the timing of repayment of these notes is uncertain, the investment in the related notes 
receivable have not been discounted. As such, these notes are stated at their face value in the accompanying 
statement of net position.  

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 

Basis of Accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized in the accounts and reported in the 
financial statements. All of the Authority's programs are considered business-type activities, which use the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis of accounting, 
revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenses recognized when incurred. Substantially all 
transactions in the Affordable Housing Program are considered to be exchange type transactions. Annual HUD 
Contributions reflected in the Assisted Housing Program are considered to be voluntary non-exchange 
transactions. Revenues for such transactions are recorded when eligible payments have been earned. 

The Authority presents a classified statement of net position, which distinguishes between short- term and long-
term assets and liabilities. The criterion used to determine whether an asset or liability is long or short-term is one 
year. This means that assets that are expected to convert to cash or will benefit the ensuing year's operations are 
treated as current assets. Likewise, liabilities that will likely be settled within the ensuing year are treated as 
current liabilities. Certain liabilities, such as Unclaimed Property and Compensated Absences, are classified into 
current and long- term portions based upon estimates of the amounts that will be settled during the ensuing year. 

C. Specific Assets, Liabilities and Revenue Recognition Policies

1. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The Authority's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, balances held by
the servicer of the notes and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date
of acquisition. Investments are reported at fair value.

The Housing Authority is authorized to invest in financial instruments that have been HUD approved.  Generally, 
these financial instruments consist of direct obligations of the Federal Government, obligations of Federal 
Government agencies, demand and savings accounts, and Certificates of Deposits.  Types and amounts of 
investments held at fiscal year-end are described in a subsequent note on investments. 

2. Restricted Assets
Restricted cash and investments include assets to be used for tenant security deposits, excess HAP funding, and
Family Self Sufficiency (“FSS”) funds held in escrow for families who successfully fulfill the program
requirements.

3. Budget
The Authority does maintain a budget for management purposes. Budgetary data is not required for financial
statement presentation.

4. Investments
Investments are reported at fair value which is based on quoted market prices. For investments in open-end money
market mutual funds, fair value is determined by the fund’s current share price. Investment income or loss
(including realized and unrealized gains and losses on investments), interest, and dividends are included in the
statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position.
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5. Tenant Receivables and Recognition of Bad Debts 

Tenant receivables are stated at net rent amounts. Tenant accounts are generally collectible for 60 days.  For 
account balances in excess of 60 days, the balances are considered to be uncollectable.  These amounts are charged 
off as a bad debt (operating cost). 

 
6. Maintenance Inventory 

The Housing Authority’s inventory balances consist of expendable supplies held for consumption.  The inventory is 
valued at cost.  The Housing Authority uses the first-in, first-out basis in determination of cost.  There is no 
allowance for obsolete inventory. 
 

7. Capital Assets 
Capital assets are recorded at cost. Costs in excess of $200 that materially add to the productive capacity and 
extend the life of an asset longer than one year are capitalized, while maintenance and repair costs are expensed as 
incurred. Donated capital assets are valued at acquisition cost. Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-
line method over the following useful lives: 
 
 Buildings and Improvements 15 – 40 years 
 Equipment   5 years 
 

8. Capitalization of Interest 
The Authority’s policy is to capitalize net interest on construction projects until substantial completion of  
the project. The amount of capitalized interest equals the difference between the interest cost associated with the 
tax-exempt borrowing used to finance the project and the interest earned from temporary investments of the debt 
proceeds over the same period. Capitalized interest is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life of the asset. 
 

9. Compensated Absences 
Compensated absences are absences for which employees will be paid, such as vacation and sick leave. 
Vacation pay, which may be accumulated up to 120 hours annually, is payable to the employee based 
upon terms of the collective bargaining agreement or employment policy whichever is applicable. An 
employee may accrue up to a maximum of 480 hours of sick pay and is payable upon terms of the 
collective bargaining agreement or employment policy whichever is applicable. Vested and accumulated 
vacation and sick leave are reported as expenses and classified into current and long-term portions in the 
applicable program.  
 

10. Deferred Inflow/Outflow of Resources 
In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a 
future period and will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  For the 
Authority, deferred outflows or resources are reported for pension related activities. 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position reports a separate section for deferred inflows of 
resources. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and 
will not be recognized until that time. For the Authority, deferred inflows of resources include pension. Deferred 
inflows of resources related to pension are reported on the statement of net position. 
 

11. Net Position 
Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of 
resources, and liabilities. 
 
Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the 
outstanding balances of any borrowings that have been used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those assets. 
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Net position is reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through the enabling 
legislation adopted by Authority or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or 
regulations of other governments. 
 
The Authority applies restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and 
unrestricted net positions are available. 
 

12. Operating Revenues and Expenses 
An enterprise fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues 
and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with an 
enterprise fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Authority’s enterprise fund 
are charges to tenants for rent and operating subsidies from HUD. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund 
include the costs of facility maintenance, housing assistance payments, administrative expenses, and depreciation 
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and 
expenses. 
 

13. Capital Contributions 
Capital contributions arise from the contributions of capital assets or from grants or outside contributions of 
resources restricted to capital acquisition and construction. 
 

14. Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of 
resources related to them, and the associated expenses, information about the fiduciary net position of the pension 
plans and additions to/deductions from their fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they 
are reported by the State’s pension systems. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee 
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The State’s pension 
systems report investments at fair value. 
 

15. Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United 
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of 
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and 
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those 
estimates. 

 
16. Inter-Program Receivables and Payables 

During the normal course of operations, numerous transactions occur between individual funds for goods 
provided or services rendered.  These receivables and payables are classified as “inter-program due from” or 
“inter-program due to” have been eliminated in the preparation of the basic financial statements.  In addition, 
offsetting inter-program operating transfers between individual programs have also been eliminated in the 
preparation of the financial statements. 
 

NOTE 2: OPERATING BUDGETS 
The Authority is not required to prepare an agency-wide budget.  Certain program regulations require a program 
budget be prepared.  Budgetary data is not required for financial statement presentation.  
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NOTE 3: CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
The Housing Authority’s policies regarding cash and investment balances are discussed in Note C-1.  The 
composition of the Housing Authority’s cash, cash equivalents and investments on December 31, 2020, was as 
follows: 
 
 

Item Balance 

Cash on hand, deposits in banks, savings deposits $9,369,756 

Investments ------ 

     Total $9,369,756 

  
Custodial credit risk 
For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Authority 
will not be able to recover the value of its investment. The Housing Authority’s bank balances in the amount of 
$9,369,756 were secured through federal depository insurance or collateralized securities at December 31, 2020. 
The Housing Authority had no custodial credit risk for its investments as of December 31, 2020. 
 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.  The 
Authority’s policy minimizes the risk by staggering the maturity dates of its investments as well as limiting the 
weighted average maturities to one year.  
 
Credit risk 
Credit risk is defined as the risk that an issuer or other counterparts to an investment in debt securities will not 
fulfill its obligation. The Authority does not have a policy that addresses credit risk. 
 
Concentration of credit risk 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government’s investment in a single 
issuer.  Investments are concentrated to one primary financial institution.   
 
The Housing Authority had no custodial credit risk for its investments as of December 31, 2020. 
 
Investments 
The Authority’s investment policy authorizes investments that meets objectives such as security, liquidity, and 
return on investment, while conforming to all Federal, State, and local statutes.  It is the Authority’s policy to 
invest only in instruments permitted by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 
 
Fair Value Measurements 
The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by general 
accepted accounting principles.  The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value of 
the asset.   Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant 
other observable inputs; and level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.  
 
The Authority has no investment balances as of December 31, 2020. 
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NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 
Accounts receivable balance consists of the following items as of December 31, 2020. All receivables are 
considered collectible. 
 

 
Accounts Receivable Item 

 
 Amount 

Tenants  $ 197,551 
Other 28,624 
Allowance for Doubtful 
Accounts 

 
(81,565) 

     Total $ 144,610 
 

NOTE 5: NOTES RECEIVABLE 
Notes held by the Authority under its Homeownership and Low-Income Public Housing Programs are stated at the 
face value of unpaid second mortgages and unpaid rental account debt. Because the ultimate timing of receipt of 
these funds is uncertain, no discounting of amounts to reflect the time value of money is reflected in these financial 
statements. Mortgage and rental account payments that are due in 2021 are classified as current assets.  

 

NOTE 6: CAPITAL ASSETS 
Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020 is reported in the following table. 
 

 
Balance at 
1/1/2020 Additions Retirements Adjust.

Balance at 
12/31/2020

Capital assets not being depreciated

Construction in Progress -$                   29,673$         -$                  -$                  29,673$              

Land 5,270,117          -                 -                    -                    5,270,117           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 5,270,117          29,673           -                    -                    5,299,790           

Capital assets being depreciated

Buildings and Improvements 36,062,788        -                 -                    -                    36,062,788         

Intangible Assets 89,224               -                 -                    -                    89,224                

Furniture and Equipment 3,747,490          200,936         171,111            -                    3,777,315           

Total capital assets, being depreciated 39,899,502$      200,936$       171,111$          -$                  39,929,327$       

Less Accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and Improvements 19,749,673$      1,320,310$    -$                  (2,104)$             21,067,879$       

Furniture and Equipment 3,053,389          275,710         156,371            (31)                    3,172,697           

Total Accumulated Depreciation 22,803,062        1,596,020      156,371            (2,135)               24,240,576         

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 17,096,440$      -$               -$                  2,135$              15,688,751$       

Net Capital Assets 22,366,557$      29,673$         -$                  2,135$              20,988,541$       
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NOTE 7: ACCRUED LEAVE 
 
As of December 31, 2020, the Accrued Leave balance was $138,551.  Of this amount, $120,750 was classified 
as current, with the remaining portion of $17,801 classified as noncurrent. 
 

 
 

NOTE 8: NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Changes in noncurrent debt for the year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Balance as 
of 1/1/2020 Increases Decreases

Balance as of 
12/31/2020

Due within 
1 Year

144,046$ 168,326$ 173,821$ 138,551$      120,750$ 

 Program/Component Unit 
 Balance as of 
Jan. 1, 2020 Additions Retirements

 Balance as of 
Dec. 31, 2020 

 Due Within 1 
Year Maturity Interest Rate

Chateau Rainier FNMA Loan 9,665,153$      -$              168,045$      9,497,108$         173,242$         Year 2046 5.66%

Demark FNMA Loan 3,064,561        -                53,283          3,011,278           54,931             Year 2046 5.66%

Lakewood Village FNMA Loan 4,259,946        -                74,066          4,185,880           76,357             Year 2046 5.66%

Montgrove Manor Project - SHB 2060 65,000             -                -                65,000                -                   Year 2041 0.00%

Rural Development Loan 422,751           26,519          396,232              22,909             Year 2030 1.00%

Compensated Absences 144,046           168,326         173,821        138,551              120,750           

Net Pension Liability 847,694           163,912        683,782              

Total OPEB Liability 1,152,976        361,091         1,514,067           

Other Liabilities 110,290           108,951        1,339                  

Total 19,732,417$ 529,417$    768,597$    19,493,237$    448,188$       
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Direct Borrowing 
 
Chateau Rainier Apartments LLC 
In 2016, the Chateau Rainier Apartments, LLC obtained a FNMA loan for the purpose of refinancing the existing 
debt in the amount of $10,250,000. The loan carries an interest rate of 5.66% and matures in 2046.  Monthly 
payments are $59,231.  Future minimum principal and interest payments related to the loan are as follows: 

 

 
 
DeMark Apartments LLC 
In 2016, the DeMark Apartments, LLC obtained a FNMA loan for the purpose of refinancing the existing debt in 
the amount of $3,250,000. The loan carries an interest rate of 5.66% and matures in 2046.  Monthly payments are 
$18,781.  Future minimum principal and interest payments related to the loan are as follows: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 Year 
 Principal 

Due  Interest Due 
 Total 

Payments 

FY 2021 173,242           537,536         710,778        

FY 2022 183,047           527,731         710,778        

FY 2023 193,408           517,370         710,778        

FY 2024 204,355           506,423         710,778        

FY 2025 215,921           494,857         710,778        

FY 2026-2030 1,277,357        2,276,533      3,553,890     

FY 2031-2035 1,682,152        1,871,738      3,553,890     

FY 2036-2040 2,215,227        1,338,663      3,553,890     

FY 2041-2045 2,917,234        636,656         3,553,890     

FY 2046 435,166           24,630           459,796        

Total 9,497,108$      8,732,138$    18,229,246$ 

 Year  Principal Due  Interest Due 
 Total 

Payments 

FY 2021 54,931                      170,438           225,369          

FY 2022 58,040                      167,329           225,369          

FY 2023 61,325                      164,044           225,369          

FY 2024 64,796                      160,573           225,369          

FY 2025 68,463                      156,906           225,369          

FY 2026-2030 405,018                    721,827           1,126,845       

FY 2031-2035 533,369                    593,476           1,126,845       

FY 2036-2040 702,394                    424,451           1,126,845       

FY 2041-2045 924,983                    201,862           1,126,845       

FY 2046 137,960                    7,809               145,769          

Total 3,011,278$               2,768,715$      5,779,994$     
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Lakewood Village Apartments LLC 
In 2016, the Lakewood Village Apartments, LLC obtained a FNMA loan for the purpose of refinancing the existing 
debt in the amount of $4,517,719. The loan carries an interest rate of 5.66% and matures in 2046.  Monthly 
payments are $26,106.  Future minimum principal and interest payments related to the loan are as follows: 
 

 
 

Rural Development Program 
In 2014, the Authority obtaining a loan that was used to acquire an apartment complex in the amount of 
$696,219.  The loan carries an interest rate of 1% and matures in 2030.  Annual payments are $26,871. 
 

 
 
Business Activity 
The Authority is carrying a loan payable for $65,000 which was used as funding of a capital project for Montgrove 
Manor.  The interest rate is 0.0% and will be released in 2041. 

 

 Year 
 Principal 

Due  Interest Due 
 Total 

Payments 

FY 2021 76,357           236,921           313,278            

FY 2022 80,679           232,599           313,278            

FY 2023 85,245           228,033           313,278            

FY 2024 90,070           223,208           313,278            

FY 2025 95,168           218,110           313,278            

FY 2026-2030 563,002         1,003,388        1,566,390         

FY 2031-2035 741,417         824,973           1,566,390         

FY 2036-2040 976,373         590,017           1,566,390         

FY 2041-2045 1,285,786      280,604           1,566,390         

FY 2046 191,781         10,855             202,636            

Total 4,185,880$    3,848,706$      8,034,586$       

 Year  Principal Due  Interest Due  Total Payments 

FY 2021 22,909                  3,962                26,871                  

FY 2022 23,138                  3,733                26,871                  

FY 2023 23,369                  3,502                26,871                  

FY 2024 23,603                  3,268                26,871                  

FY 2025 23,839                  3,032                26,871                  

FY 2026-2030 122,818                11,537              134,355                

FY 2031-2035 156,557                5,272                161,829                

Total 396,232$              34,306$            430,539$              
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NOTE 9: NET PENSION LIABILITY 

The following table represents the aggregate pension amounts for all plans for the year 2020: 

Aggregate Pension Amounts – All Plans 
Pension liabilities $683,782 
Pension assets      ----- 
Deferred outflows of resources $225,425 
Deferred inflows of resources $312,064 
Pension expense/expenditures $(114,265) 

State Sponsored Pension Plans 

Substantially all Authority’s full-time and qualifying part-time employees participate in one of the 
following statewide retirement systems administered by the Washington State Department of Retirement 
Systems, under cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee defined benefit and defined contribution 
retirement plans.  The state Legislature establishes, and amends, laws pertaining to the creation and 
administration of all public retirement systems. 

The Department of Retirement Systems (DRS), a department within the primary government of the State 
of Washington, issues a publicly available comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information for each plan.  The DRS CAFR may be 
obtained by writing to: 

Department of Retirement Systems 
Communications Unit 
P.O. Box 48380 
Olympia, WA 98540-8380 

Or the DRS CAFR may be downloaded from the DRS website at www.drs.wa.gov. 

Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS) 

PERS members include elected officials; state employees; employees of the Supreme, Appeals and Superior 
Courts; employees of the legislature; employees of district and municipal courts; employees of local 
governments; and higher education employees not participating in higher education retirement programs.  
PERS is comprised of three separate pension plans for membership purposes.  PERS plans 1 and 2 are 
defined benefit plans, and PERS plan 3 is a defined benefit plan with a defined contribution component. 

PERS Plan 1 provides retirement, disability and death benefits.  Retirement benefits are determined as two 
percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service.  The AFC 
is the average of the member’s 24 highest consecutive service months.  Members are eligible for retirement 
from active status at any age with at least 30 years of service, at age 55 with at least 25 years of service, or 
at age 60 with at least five years of service.  Members retiring from active status prior to the age of 65 may 
receive actuarially reduced benefits.  Retirement benefits are actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a 
survivor benefit.  Other benefits include duty and non-duty disability payments, an optional cost-of-living 
adjustment (COLA), and a one-time duty-related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor 
and Industries.  PERS 1 members were vested after the completion of five years of eligible service.  The 
plan was closed to new entrants on September 30, 1977. 
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Contributions 
 
The PERS Plan 1 member contribution rate is established by State statute at 6 percent.  The employer 
contribution rate is developed by the Office of the State Actuary and includes an administrative expense 
component that is currently set at 0.18 percent.  Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts 
Plan 1 employer contribution rates.  The PERS Plan 1 required contribution rates (expressed as a percentage 
of covered payroll) for 2020 were as follows: 
 

PERS Plan 1   
Actual Contribution Rates Employer Employee* 
January – August 2020   
PERS Plan 1 7.92% 6.00% 
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.76%  
Administrative Fee 0.18%  

Total 12.86% 6.00% 
September – December 2020   
PERS Plan 1 7.92% 6.00% 
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.87%  
Administrative Fee 0.18%  

Total 12.97% 6.00% 
 

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 12.26%. 
 
PERS Plan 2/3 provides retirement, disability and death benefits.  Retirement benefits are determined as 
two percent of the member’s average final compensation (AFC) times the member’s years of service for 
Plan 2 and 1 percent of AFC for Plan 3.  The AFC is the average of the member’s 60 highest-paid 
consecutive service months.  There is no cap on years of service credit.  Members are eligible for retirement 
with a full benefit at 65 with at least five years of service credit.  Retirement before age 65 is considered an 
early retirement.  PERS Plan 2/3 members who have at least 20 years of service credit and are 55 years of 
age or older, are eligible for early retirement with a benefit that is reduced by a factor that varies according 
to age for each year before age 65.  PERS Plan 2/3 members who have 30 or more years of service credit 
and are at least 55 years old can retire under one of two provisions: 
 

 With a benefit that is reduced by three percent for each year before age 65; or 

 With a benefit that has a smaller (or no) reduction (depending on age) that imposes stricter return-
to-work rules. 

 
PERS Plan 2/3 members hired on or after May 1, 2013 have the option to retire early by accepting a 
reduction of five percent for each year of retirement before age 65.  This option is available only to those 
who are age 55 or older and have at least 30 years of service credit.  PERS Plan 2/3 retirement benefits are 
also actuarially reduced to reflect the choice of a survivor benefit.  Other PERS Plan 2/3 benefits include 
duty and non-duty disability payments, a cost-of-living allowance (based on the CPI), capped at three 
percent annually and a one-time duty related death benefit, if found eligible by the Department of Labor 
and Industries.  PERS 2 members are vested after completing five years of eligible service.  Plan 3 members 
are vested in the defined benefit portion of their plan after ten years of service; or after five years of service 
if 12 months of that service are earned after age 44. 
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PERS Plan 3 defined contribution benefits are totally dependent on employee contributions and investment 
earnings on those contributions.  PERS Plan 3 members choose their contribution rate upon joining 
membership and have a chance to change rates upon changing employers.  As established by statute, Plan 
3 required defined contribution rates are set at a minimum of 5 percent and escalate to 15 percent with a 
choice of six options.  Employers do not contribute to the defined contribution benefits.  PERS Plan 3 
members are immediately vested in the defined contribution portion of their plan. 
 
Contributions 
 
The PERS Plan 2/3 employer and employee contribution rates are developed by the Office of the State 
Actuary to fully fund Plan 2 and the defined benefit portion of Plan 3.  The Plan 2/3 employer rates include 
a component to address the PERS Plan 1 UAAL and an administrative expense that is currently set at 0.18 
percent.  Each biennium, the state Pension Funding Council adopts Plan 2 employer and employee 
contribution rates and Plan 3 contribution rates.  The PERS Plan 2/3 required contribution rates (expressed 
as a percentage of covered payroll) for 2020 were as follows: 
 

PERS Plan 2/3   
Actual Contribution Rates Employer 2/3 Employee 2* 
January – August 2020   
PERS Plan 2/3 7.92% 7.90% 
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.76%  
Administrative Fee 0.18%  
Employee PERS Plan 3  Varies 

Total 12.86% 7.90% 
September – December 2020   
PERS Plan 2/3 7.92% 7.90% 
PERS Plan 1 UAAL 4.87%  
Administrative Fee 0.18%  
Employee PERS Plan 3  Varies 

Total 12.97% 7.90% 
 

* For employees participating in JBM, the contribution rate was 19.75%. 
 
The Authority’s actual PERS plan contributions were $97,998 to PERS Plan 1 and $161,287 to PERS Plan 
2/3 for the year ended December 31, 2020. 
 
Actuarial Assumptions 
 
The total pension liability (TPL) for each of the DRS plans was determined using the most recent actuarial 
valuation completed in 2020 with a valuation date of June 30, 2019.  The actuarial assumptions used in the 
valuation were based on the results of the Office of the State Actuary’s (OSA) 2013-2019 Experience Study 
and the 2019 Economic Experience Study. 
 
Additional assumptions for subsequent events and law changes are current as of the 2019 actuarial valuation 
report.  The TPL was calculated as of the valuation date and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 
30, 2020.  Plan liabilities were rolled forward from June 30, 2019, to June 30, 2020, reflecting each plan’s 
normal cost (using the entry-age cost method), assumed interest and actual benefit payments. 
 

 Inflation:  2.75% total economic inflation; 3.50% salary inflation 
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 Salary increases:  In addition to the base 3.50% salary inflation assumption, salaries are also
expected to grow by promotions and longevity.

 Investment rate of return:  7.4%

Mortality rates were developed using the Society of Actuaries’ Pub. H-2020 mortality rates, which vary by 
member status, as the base table.  The OSA applied age offsets for each system, as appropriate, to better 
tailor the mortality rates to the demographics of each plan.  OSA applied the long-term MP-2017 
generational improvement scale, also developed by the Society Actuaries, to project mortality rates for 
every year after the 2010 base table.  Mortality rates are applied on a generational basis; meaning, each 
member is assumed to receive additional mortality improvements in each future year throughout his or her 
lifetime. 

There were changes in methods and assumptions since the last valuation. 

 OSA updated its demographic assumptions based on the results of its latest demographic experience
study.  See OSA’s 2013-2019 Demographic Experience Study at leg.wa.gov/osa.

 OSA updated the Early Retirement Factors and Joint-and-Survivor factors used in its model to
match the ones implemented by DRS on October 1, 2020.  These factors are used to value benefits
for members who elect to retire early and for survivors of members that die prior to retirement.

 The valuation includes liabilities and assets for Plan 3 members purchasing Total Allocation
Portfolio annuities when determining contribution rates and funded status.

 OSA simplified its modeling of medical premium reimbursements for survivors of duty-related
deaths in LEOFF 2.

 OSA changed its method of updating certain data items that change annually, including the public
safety duty-related death lump sum and Washington state average wage.  OSA set these values at
2019 and will project them into the future using assumptions until the next Demographic
Experience Study in 2025.  See leg.wa.gov/osa for more information on this method change.

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for all DRS plans was 7.4 percent. 

To determine that rate, an asset sufficiency test was completed to test whether each pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position was sufficient to make all projected future benefit payments for current plan members.  Based 
on OSA’s assumptions, the pension plans’ fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
of 7.4 percent was used to determine the total liability. 

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 

The long-term expected rate of return on the DRS pension plan investments of 7.4 percent was determined 
using a building-block-method.  In selecting this assumption, the Office of the State Actuary (OSA) 
reviewed the historical experience data, considered the historical conditions that produced past annual 
investment returns, and considered Capital Market Assumptions (CMA’s) and simulated expected 
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investment returns provided by the Washington State Investment Board (WSIB).  The WSIB uses the  
CMA’s and their target asset allocation to simulate future investment returns at various future times. 
 
Estimated Rates of Return by Asset Class 
 
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the pension plan’s 
target asset allocation as of June 30, 2020, are summarized in the table below.  The inflation component 
used to create the table is 2.2 percent and represents the WSIB’s most recent long-term estimate of broad 
economic inflation. 
 

 
Asset Class 

 
Target 

Allocation 

% Long-Term 
Expected Real Rate of 

Return Arithmetic 
Fixed Income 20% 2.20% 
Tangible Assets 7% 5.10% 
Real Estate 18% 5.80% 
Global Equity 32% 6.30% 
Private Equity 23% 9.30% 
 100%  

 
 
 
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) 
 
The table below presents the Authority’s proportionate share* of the net pension liability calculated using 
the discount rate of 7.4 percent, as well as what the Authority’s proportionate share of the net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.4 percent) 
or 1-percentage point higher (8.4 percent) than the current rate. 
 
 

 1% Decrease 
(6.4%) 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.4%) 

1% Increase 
(8.4%) 

PERS 1 $583,023 $465,466 $362,945 
PERS 2/3 $1,358,418 $218,316 $(720,559) 

 
* See Note 4.C of the DRS Participating Employer Financial Information report for the year ended June 
30.  Multiply the total net pension liability amounts for each applicable plan by your proportionate 
share for that plan. 

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 
 
Detailed information about the State’s pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the separately 
issued DRS financial report. 
 
Pension Liabilities (Assets), Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2020, the Authority reported a total pension liability of $683,782 for its proportionate share of 
the net pension liabilities as follows: 
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 Liability (or Asset) 
PERS 1 $465,466 
PERS 2/3 $218,316 
    Total $683,782 

 
At June 30, the Authority’s proportionate share of the collective net pension liabilities was as follows:  
 

 Proportionate 
Share 6/30/19 

Proportionate 
Share 6/30/20 

Change in 
Proportion 

PERS 1 0.016619% 0.013184% .003435% 
PERS 2/3 0.021479% 0.017070% .004409% 

 
Employer contribution transmittals received and processed by the DRS for the fiscal year ended June 30 
are used as the basis for determining each employer’s proportionate share of the collective pension amounts 
reported by the DRS in the Schedules of Employer and Nonemployer Allocations. 
 
The collective net pension liability (asset) was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the actuarial valuation 
date on which the total pension liability (asset) is based was as of June 30, 2019, with update procedures 
used to roll forward the total pension liability to the measurement date. 
 
Pension Expense 
 
For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Authority recognized pension expense as follows: 
 

 Pension Expense 
PERS 1 $(118,147) 
PERS 2/3 $     3,883 
    TOTAL $(114,265) 

 
Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
 
At December 31, 2020, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

 
PERS 1 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

$ ----- $ ------ 

Net difference between projected and actual 
investment earnings on pension plan investments 

$ ----- $2,592 

Changes of assumptions $ ----- $ ------ 
Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

$ ----- $ ------ 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $52,005 $ ------ 
TOTAL $52,005 $2,592 
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PERS 2/3 
Deferred Outflows 

of Resources 
Deferred Inflows 

of Resources 
Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

$78,154 $27,360 

Net difference between projected and actual 
investment earnings on pension plan investments 

$ ----- $11,087 

Changes of assumptions $ 3,109 $149,129 
Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

$ 6,589 $121,896 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $85,568 $ ------ 
TOTAL $173,420 $309,472 

 
 
 

 
Total of Plans 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

Differences between expected and actual 
experience 

$78,154 $27,360 

Net difference between projected and actual 
investment earnings on pension plan investments 

$ ----- $13,679 

Changes of assumptions $ 3,109 $149,129 
Changes in proportion and differences between 
contributions and proportionate share of 
contributions 

$ 6,589 $ 121,896 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date $137,573 $ ------ 
TOTAL $225,425 $312,064 

 
 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the Authority’s contributions subsequent 
to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
December 31, 2021.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year ended 
December 31: 

 
PERS 1 

2021 $(11,760) 
2022 (370) 
2023 3,588 
2024 5,950 
2025 ----- 
Thereafter ----- 
   Total $(2,592) 
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Year ended 

December 31: 
 

PERS 2/3 
2021 $(110,531) 
2022 (41,597) 
2023 (16,063) 
2024 22 
2025 (23,968) 
Thereafter (29,483) 
     Total $(221,620) 

 

NOTE 10: OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
 

Plan Description  
 
The Authority participates in a single employer health care plan offered through the Public Employees Benefits 
Board (PEBB). PEBB offers retirees access to medical, prescription drug, life dental, vision, disability and long- 
term care insurance. The Authority pays monthly premiums to PEBB to provide current coverage for medical and 
other benefits for active employees. These premiums do not pay for a portion of the PEBB benefit to future 
retirees. The PEBB OPEB plan does not issue a publicly available financial report. 
 
Per RCW 41.05.065, the Public Employees' Benefits Board (PEBB), created within the Washington State Health 
Care Authority (HCA), is authorized to design benefits and determine the terms and conditions of employee and 
retired employee participation and coverage. PEBB establishes eligibility criteria for both active employees and 
retirees. Benefits purchased by PEBB include medical, dental, life and long-term disability. 
 
The relationship between the PEBB OPEB plan and its member employers and their employees and retirees is 
not formalized in a contract or plan document. Rather, the benefits are provided in accordance with a substantive 
plan. A substantive plan is one in which the plan terms are understood by the employers and plan members. This 
understanding is based on communications between the PEBB, employers and plan members and the historical 
pattern of practice with regard to the sharing of benefit costs. 

 

Eligibility 
 
Employees must be a vested member and meet the eligibility requirements from a Washington State-sponsored 
retirement plan when your employer coverage, COBRA coverage, or continuation coverage ends.  Employees 
must provide documentation for enrollment no later than 60 days after the end of the continuation coverage.   

Substantially all of the Authority's employees will become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal 
retirement age while working for the Authority. There are currently no terminated employees or retirees who are 
eligible to receive these benefits. 
 

Benefits 
 
Upon retirement, members have access to medical, prescription drug, life dental, vision, disability and long-term 
care insurance. Per RCW 41.05.022, retirees who are not yet eligible for Medicare benefits may continue 
participation in the state's non-Medicare community-rated health insurance risk pool on a self-pay basis.  
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HCA administers PEBB plan benefits. For medical insurance coverage, the HCA has two claims pools: one 
covering employees and non-Medicare eligible retirees, and the other covering retirees enrolled in Medicare Parts 
A and B. PEBB plan benefits provide two different subsidies for retirees: an explicit subsidy and an implicit 
subsidy. In addition, there is cost-sharing between employers and employees. Each participating employer pays 
a portion of the premium for active employees. Retirees are responsible for paying the full premium for 
participating in the program, which are reduced through the subsidies. 
 
Retirees who are enrolled in both Parts A and B of Medicare may participate in the state's Medicare community-
rated health insurance risk pool. Medicare retirees receive an explicit subsidy in the form of reduced premiums. 
Annually, the HCA administrator recommends an amount for the next calendar year's explicit subsidy for 
inclusion in the Governor's budget. The final amount is approved by the State Legislature. 
 
Membership in the PEBB plan for the Authority consisted of the following: 
 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently 
receiving benefits 

 
1 

Active Employees 35 
   Total 36 

 

Funding Policy 
 
The Washington Health Care Authority (HCA) administers the PEBB benefit plans. For medical insurance, HCA 
has two claims pools: one covering employees and non-Medicare eligible retirees and one covering retirees 
enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B. Each participating employer pays a portion of the premiums for active 
employees. For retirees, participating employees provide two different subsidies: and explicit subsidy and an 
implicit subsidy. 
 

The explicit subsidy, permitted under the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 41.05.085, is a straightforward, 
set dollar amount for a specific group of people. The explicit subsidy lowers the monthly premium paid by retired 
members enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B. PEBB determines the amount of the explicit subsidy annually. 
 
Claims experience for employees and non-Medicare eligible retirees are pooled when determining premiums, so 
retired members pay a premium based on a pool of members that are, on average, younger and healthier. This 
results in an implicit subsidy, set up under RCW 41.05.022, from the employee group since the premiums paid 
by the retirees are lower than they would have been if the retirees were insured separately. The implicit and 
explicit subsidies funded on a pay-as-you- go basis. As such, the funded ratio is 0. 
 
Contribution Information. Administrative costs as well as implicit subsidies are funded by required contributions 
(RCW 41.05.050) from participating employers. The subsidies provide monetary assistance for medical benefits. 
The benefits are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis. The estimated monthly cost for PEBB benefits for the reporting 
period for each active employee (average across all plans and tiers) is as follows: 

Annual OPEB Cost and Total OPEB Liability (TOL) 
 
The Authority's OPEB cost is calculated based upon the Annual Required Contribution of the employer (ARC). 
With fewer than 100 total plan members, the Authority has elected to calculate the ARC and related information 
using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASB Statement 75. The Authority's OPEB expense 
recorded using the alternative approach is $363,957.  The Net OPEB Liability of $1,514,067 is included as a 
noncurrent liability on the Statement of Net Position. 
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 
The Authority’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 
 
The economic assumptions are used in the actuarial valuation to determine liabilities and benefit payments in 
the future. For presentation purposes, they are shown separately for non-healthcare and healthcare. 
 
The inflation assumption is a building block component of the healthcare trend rates and reflects our office’s 
current assumption for future inflation. This assumption is studied by our office every two years as part of the 
Economic Experience Study. The PEBB programs do not provide salary-based benefits, however we rely on a 
salary growth assumption to complete this analysis based on the GASB 75 prescribed EAN cost method. All 
other non-healthcare economic assumptions, including salary growth, are consistent with assumptions presented 
in the June 30, 2019 Actuarial Valuation Report (AVR). 
 
The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility 
in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the 
calculations. 
 
The Authority has used the alternative measurement method permitted under GASB Statement 75. A single 
retirement age of 55 was assumed for all active members to determine the AAL and normal cost.  
 
A copy of the 2019 Other Post-Employment Benefits Actuarial Valuation Report can be downloaded from the 
Washington Office of the State Actuary located at the following website: 
 
http://leg.wa.gov/osa/additionalservices/Documents/Final.2019.PEBB.OPEB.AVR.pdf 
 

The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods 
included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

 

Actuarial Information PEBB Plan 
Actuarial Assumptions:  
Single Discount Rate 
  Beginning of Measurement Year 
  End of Measurement Year 

 
3.50% 
2.21% 

Based Mortality Table Healthy RP-2000 
Age Setback 1 year 
Mortality Improvements 100% Scale BB 
Projected Salary Changes 3.5% + Service-Based increases 
 
Healthcare Trend Rates 

Initial rate is approximately 7%, trending down to 
about 5% in 2020 

Inflation Rate 2.75% 
Post- Retirement Participation 65% 
Percentage with Spouse Coverage 45% 

 
 
The explicit subsidy lowers the monthly premium lowers the monthly premium paid by members over the age of 
65 enrolled Medicare Parts A and B.  Annually, the HCA administrator recommends an amount for the next 
calendar year’s explicit subsidy.  The final amount is approved by the state Legislature.  The explicit subsidy is 
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the lessor of 50% of the monthly premium and the maximum explicit subsidy per month.  In 2019, the dollar 
amount was set at $168 and will increase to $183 in 2020. 
 
The following table presents the Authority’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability calculated using the current 
discount rate, and the expected net OPEB liability if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point 
lower and one-percentage-point higher than the current rate. 
 

Sensitivity Analysis 

 1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase 

Discount Rate $1,899,925 $1,514,067 $1,218,403 

Healthcare Trend $1,164,838 $1,514,067 $1,993,400 
 
 

NOTE 11: CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
The following condensed financial information for blended component units of the Authority has been 
presented for the year ending December 31, 2020. 

Chateau Rainier 
Apartments, LLC

DeMark 
Apartments, LLC

Lakewood Village 
Apartments, LLC

Current Assets 1,195,560       4,296                 715,689                
Capital Assets 4,798,418       1,660,793           4,578,161              

Total Assets 5,993,978       1,665,089           5,293,850              

Deferred Outflows of Resources -                -                    -                       

Current Liabilities 359,666          140,272             186,436                
Long-Term Liabilities 9,319,300       2,954,900           4,107,564              

Total Liabilities 9,678,966       3,095,172           4,294,000              

Deferred Inflows of Resources -                -                    -                       

Net Investment in Capital Assets (4,698,689)      (1,350,485)         392,282                
Restricted Net Position 165,962          47,474               69,514                  
Unrestricted Net Position 847,739          (127,073)            538,054                

Total Net Position (3,684,988)$    (1,430,084)$        999,850$              

Condensed Statements of Net Position
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Chateau Rainier 
Apartments, LLC

DeMark 
Apartments, LLC

Lakewood Village 
Apartments, LLC

Operating Revenue 2,530,694  898,063  1,475,606  

Operating Expenses 1,907,721  762,489  1,015,916  
Depreciation Expense 379,990  149,681  337,007  

Operating income (Loss) 242,983  (14,107)  122,683  

Nonoperating revenues (Expenses) (3,380)  (3,238) (2,583) 

Change in Net Position 239,603  (17,345)  120,100  

Beginning Net Position (3,924,591)   (1,412,739) 879,750  

Ending Net Position (3,684,988)$    (1,430,084)$   999,850$  

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Net Position

Chateau Rainier 
Apartments, LLC

DeMark 
Apartments, LLC

Lakewood Village 
Apartments, LLC

Cash Flows from Operations 824,381$   (158,667)$   510,906$  

Net Increase (Decrease) 824,381  (158,667)  510,906  

Beginning Cash Balance 346,329  135,269  168,722  

Ending Cash Balance 1,170,710$  (23,398)$   679,628$  

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

NOTE 12: SPECIAL ITEM 
The Pierce County Housing Authority was made aware of a fraudulent act of a management official during the 
annual financial audit conducted by the State Auditor’s Office (SAO).  The fraud started in 2016 and continued 
into 2019.  The special item represents the amount of restitution collected in the current fiscal year. 
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NOTE 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 
The Authority receives significant financial assistance from federal, state, and local agencies in the form of 
grants and operating subsidies. HUD provided approximately 80% of the Authority’s operating revenue in the 
current year. The disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms 
and conditions specified in the agreements and are subject to audit by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the 
extent that the Authority has not complied with rules and regulations governing the grants, if any, refunds of any 
money received may be required.  

Management believes there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to compliance with grant rules and 
regulations with the exception of the Special Item described in a previous note.  It is unknown at this time the 
potential consequences or repayments that this event may have upon respect to the grantor agencies. 

NOTE 14: RISK MANAGEMENT 
The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; 
errors or omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Agency maintains comprehensive 
insurance coverage with private carriers for vehicles, earthquake, and employee major medical and dental. 
Workman’s compensation insurance is provided through the Washington State Department of Labor and 
Industries.  

Coverage for property, general liability, errors and omissions, and fidelity insurance is provided by the Housing 
Authorities Risk Retention Pool (“HARRP”). The Authority has elected to pay for its unemployment insurance 
coverage through quarterly reimbursements to the Washington State Employment Security Department as 
provided for by RCW 50.44.060. This reimbursement method is in lieu of paying unemployment taxes. 

The Authority is a member of the HARRP. Chapter 48.62 RCW (self-insurance regulation) and Chapter 39.34 
RCW (Interlocal Cooperation Act), authorizes the governing body of any one or more governmental entities to 
form together into or join a pool or organization for the joint purchasing of insurance, and/or joint self-insuring, 
and/or joint hiring or contracting for risk management services to the same extent that they may individually 
purchase insurance, self-insure, or hire or contract for risk management services. HARRP was created in March 
1987 for the purposes of providing insurance and risk management services for housing authorities in the states 
of Washington, Nevada, Oregon and California. 

The Authority has obtained the following coverages from HARRP: General liability coverage is written on an 
occurrence form basis with a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence, to a total of $5,000,000 without any deductible, 
Errors and omissions coverage, including employment practices liability, is written on a claims made basis with 
a limit of $2,000,000 per occurrence. The Authority is responsible for 10% of any incurred loss. Property loss 
coverage is on a replacement cost basis with a deductible of $2,500 per occurrence. Fidelity coverage with a 
limit of $1,000,000 for employee dishonesty and forgery or alteration and theft, with a deductible of $1,000 per 
occurrence. 

NOTE 15: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
Management has evaluated subsequent events through May 29, 2021, the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued.  Management is not aware of any subsequent events that require recognition of 
disclosure in the financial statements. 

The Housing Authority’s operations may be affected by the recent and ongoing outbreak of the coronavirus 
disease (Covid-19) which was declared a pandemic by the World Health Organization in March 2020.  The 
ultimate disruption may cause an adverse impact on the Housing Authority’s financial position, operations and 
cash flows.  Possible effects may include, the reduction of tenant’s dwelling rent due to the increased 
unemployment, absenteeism in the Housing Authority’s workforce, unavailability of products and supplies, and 
reduced accessibility to contractors. 
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PERS PLAN 1 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Authority’s proportion 
of the net pension 
liability 

0.013184% 0.016619% 0.016652% 0.017061% 0.017223% 0.016029% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 

$465,466 $639,060 $743,684 $809,558 $924,956 $838,466 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s covered 
payroll 

$2,010,369 $2,120,023 $2,263,789 $2,285,200 $2,243,004 $2,049,548 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its 
covered payroll 

23.15% 30.14% 32.85% 35.43% 41.24% 40.91% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Plan fiduciary net 
position as a percentage 
of the total pension 
liability  

68.64% 67.12% 63.22% 61.24% 57.03% 59.10% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

PERS PLAN 2/3 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Authority’s proportion 
of the net pension 
liability 

0.017070% 0.021479% 0.021202% 0.021945% 0.022060% 0.020716% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 

$218,316 $208,634 $362,005 $762,484 $1,108,992 $740,194 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s covered 
payroll 

$2,010,369 $2,120,023 $2,263,789 $2,285,200 $2,243,004 $2,049,548 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Authority’s 
proportionate share of 
the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its 
covered payroll 

10.86% 9.84% 15.99% 33.37% 49.44% 36.11% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Plan fiduciary net 
position as a percentage 
of the total pension 
liability (Traditional) 

97.22% 97.77% 95.77% 90.97% 85.82% 89.20% N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Page 59



PIERCE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF THE AUTHORITY’S CONTRIBUTIONS 

FOR THE PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 

LAST 10 FISCAL YEARS 

PERS PLAN 1 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Contractually required 
contribution 

$97,998 $100,098 $122,324 $95,994 $111,537 $87,763 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contributions in 
relation to the 
contractually required 
contributions 

$(97,998) $(100,098) $(122,324) $(95,994) $(111,537) $(87,763) N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency 
(excess) 

$    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- N/A N/A N/A N/A

Authority’s covered 
payroll 

$1,999,207 $2,120,023 $2,263,789 $2,285,200 $2,243,004 $2,049,548 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 
payroll 

4.87% 4.72% 5.4% 4.20% 4.97% 4.28% N/A N/A N/A N/A

PERS PLAN 2/3 

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 
Contractually required 
contribution 

$161,287 $154,049 $181,388 $133,064 $ 145,676 $112,210 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contributions in relation 
to the contractually 
required contributions 

$(161,287) $(154,049) $(181,388) $(133,064) $(145,676) $(112,210) N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contribution deficiency 
(excess) 

$    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- $    ----- N/A N/A N/A N/A

Authority’s covered 
payroll 

$1,999,207 $2,120,023 $2,263,789 $2,285,200 $2,243,004 $2,049,548 N/A N/A N/A N/A

Contributions as a 
percentage of covered 
payroll 

8.02% 7.27% 8.01% 5.82% 6.49% 5.47% N/A N/A N/A N/A
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PIERCE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE AUTHORITY’S TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

AND RELATED RATIOS 

2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB liability - beginning 1,152,976$  1,471,127$  1,414,167$   

Service cost 76,817 93,130 110,027
Interest 42,993 60,397 54,499
Changes in benefit terms 0 0
Differences between expected and actual experience 244,147 (464,366) (103,785)
Changes of assumptions 0 0
Benefit payments (2,866) (7,312) (3,781)
Other changes

Total OPEB liability - ending 1,514,067 1,152,976 1,471,127

Covered-employee payroll 1,999,207 2,120,023 2,263,789

Total OPEB liability as a % of covered-employee payroll 75.73% 54.39% 64.99%

Notes to Schedule:
Until a full 10-year trend is compiled, only information for those years available is presented.
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB 75.
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PIERCE COUNTY HOUSING AUTHORITY 
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

For the Year Ending December 31, 2020 

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is prepared on the same basis of accounting as 
Pierce County Housing Authority’s financial statements. 

NOTE 2 – PROGRAM COSTS 

The amounts shown as current year expenditures represent only the federal portion of the program 
cost.  Actual program costs, including the Housing Authority’s portion, may be more than shown. 

NOTE 3 – INDIRECT COST RATE 

The amount expended includes $1,368,640 claimed as an indirect cost recovery using an approved 
indirect cost allocation plan.  The Housing Authority has not elected to use the 10-percent de 
Minimis indirect cost rate allowed under Uniform Guidance. 

NOTE 4 – RURAL RENTAL HOUSING LOAN 

In 2014, the Authority was approved by the USDA Rural Housing Service to receive a loan totaling 
$696,219 for the acquisition of an apartment complex. The amount listed on this schedule is the 
outstanding loan balance as of January 1, 2020, amounting to $422,752.  The balance of the Rural 
Rental Housing loan at December 31, 2020, was $396,232. 

Page 63



S
ub

m
is

si
on

 T
yp

e:
 

14
.P

H
C

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
A

R
E

S
 

A
ct

 F
un

di
ng

14
.8

96
 P

IH
 F

am
ily

 
S

el
f-

S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

P
ro

gr
am

8 
O

th
er

 F
ed

er
al

 
P

ro
gr

am
 1

10
.4

15
 R

ur
al

 
R

en
ta

l H
ou

si
ng

 
Lo

an
s

14
.8

71
 H

ou
si

ng
 

C
ho

ic
e 

V
ou

ch
er

s

14
.H

C
C

 H
C

V
 

C
A

R
E

S
 A

ct
 

F
un

di
ng

10
.4

27
 R

ur
al

 
R

en
ta

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

P
ay

m
en

ts
S

ub
to

ta
l

E
LI

M
T

ot
al

$9
42

,9
43

$2
06

,5
78

$1
02

,4
02

$6
,6

71
,0

85
$6

,6
71

,0
85

$3
62

,9
03

$3
62

,9
03

$7
8,

39
6

$1
14

,6
50

$4
70

,0
71

$4
70

,0
71

$6
,4

00
$2

83
,8

11
$2

83
,8

11

$4
05

,6
42

$8
92

,5
89

$1
,4

76
,3

59
$1

,4
76

,3
59

$0
$0

$9
42

,9
43

$2
91

,3
74

$6
22

,6
94

$8
92

,5
89

$0
$9

,2
64

,2
29

$9
,2

64
,2

29

$2
2,

35
0

$2
2,

35
0

$2
2,

35
0

$2
,7

60
$2

,4
40

$6
,2

75
$6

,2
75

$2
,4

60
$0

$1
97

,5
50

$1
97

,5
50

$0
$0

-$
41

3
$0

-$
48

,7
25

-$
48

,7
25

$0
$0

-$
14

,7
60

$0
-$

18
,0

80
$0

$0
-$

32
,8

40
-$

32
,8

40

$0
$0

-$
12

,0
00

$4
,4

87
$4

,2
70

$0
$0

$1
44

,6
10

$1
44

,6
10

$1
05

,5
25

$1
05

,5
25

$2
59

,8
85

$2
59

,8
85

$1
1,

39
6

$1
1,

39
6

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$0
$0

$9
30

,9
43

$2
95

,8
61

$6
26

,9
64

$8
92

,5
89

$0
$9

,7
85

,6
45

$9
,7

85
,6

45

$9
0,

10
0

$5
,2

70
,1

17
$5

,2
70

,1
17

$6
16

,5
64

$3
6,

06
2,

78
9

$3
6,

06
2,

78
9

$5
0,

24
4

$3
,0

45
,5

15
$3

,0
45

,5
15

$1
08

,7
32

$8
21

,0
23

$8
21

,0
23

-$
29

8,
78

2
-$

82
,4

47
-$

24
,2

40
,5

75
-$

24
,2

40
,5

75

$2
9,

67
3

$2
9,

67
3

$2
9,

67
3

$0
$0

$0
$4

58
,1

26
$5

5,
95

8
$0

$0
$2

0,
98

8,
54

2
$2

0,
98

8,
54

2

$1
,0

46
,7

58
$1

,0
96

,7
58

$1
,0

96
,7

58

$0
$0

$1
,0

46
,7

58
$4

58
,1

26
$5

5,
95

8
$0

$0
$2

2,
08

5,
30

0
$2

2,
08

5,
30

0

$1
21

,0
42

$2
25

,4
24

$2
25

,4
24

$0
$0

$1
,9

77
,7

01
$7

53
,9

87
$8

03
,9

64
$8

92
,5

89
$0

$3
2,

09
6,

36
9

$3
2,

09
6,

36
9

$5
66

,6
51

$5
66

,6
51

H
A

 O
f P

ie
rc

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
 (

W
A

05
4)

T
ac

om
a,

 W
A

En
tit

y 
W

id
e 

B
al

an
ce

 S
he

et
 S

um
m

ar
y

 A
ud

ite
d/

S
in

gl
e 

A
ud

it 
   

   
   

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

E
nd

: 
12

/3
1/

20
20

 1
12

  C
as

h 
- 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

- 
M

od
er

ni
za

tio
n 

an
d 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
$3

62
,9

03

 1
13

  C
as

h 
- 

O
th

er
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d
$1

72
,2

03
$1

04
,8

22

P
ro

je
ct

 T
ot

al
6.

2 
C

om
po

ne
nt

 
U

ni
t -

 B
le

nd
ed

1 
B

us
in

es
s 

A
ct

iv
iti

es

 1
11

  C
as

h 
- 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d
$3

58
,8

50
$9

45
,2

48
$4

,1
15

,0
64

 1
00

  T
ot

al
 C

as
h

$5
72

,2
03

$1
,7

80
,2

25
$4

,1
62

,2
01

 1
14

  C
as

h 
- 

T
en

an
t S

ec
ur

ity
 D

ep
os

its
$4

1,
15

0
$1

89
,1

24
$4

7,
13

7

 1
15

  C
as

h 
- 

R
es

tr
ic

te
d 

fo
r 

P
ay

m
en

t o
f C

ur
re

nt
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
$1

78
,1

28

 1
24

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

O
th

er
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t

 1
25

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

M
is

ce
lla

ne
ou

s
$9

20
$0

$1
55

 1
21

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

P
H

A
 P

ro
je

ct
s

 1
22

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

H
U

D
 O

th
er

 P
ro

je
ct

s

 1
26

.2
  A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

D
ou

bt
fu

l A
cc

ou
nt

s 
- 

O
th

er
$0

$0
$0

 1
27

  N
ot

es
, L

oa
ns

, &
 M

or
tg

ag
es

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

- 
C

ur
re

nt

 1
26

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

T
en

an
ts

$4
8,

86
4

$1
11

,5
64

$3
4,

66
2

 1
26

.1
  A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

D
ou

bt
fu

l A
cc

ou
nt

s 
-T

en
an

ts
-$

12
,5

56
-$

22
,9

6
0

-$
12

,7
96

 1
29

  A
cc

ru
ed

 In
te

re
st

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e

 1
20

  T
ot

al
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

es
, N

et
 o

f A
llo

w
an

ce
s 

fo
r 

D
ou

bt
fu

l A
cc

ou
nt

s
$3

7,
22

8
$8

8,
60

4
$2

2,
02

1

 1
28

  F
ra

ud
 R

ec
ov

er
y

 1
28

.1
  A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

D
ou

bt
fu

l A
cc

ou
nt

s 
- 

F
ra

ud

 1
32

  I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 -
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d

 1
35

  I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 -
 R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
fo

r 
P

ay
m

en
t o

f C
ur

re
nt

 L
ia

bi
lit

y

 1
31

  I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 -
 U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

$1
05

,5
25

 1
43

.1
  A

llo
w

an
ce

 fo
r 

O
bs

ol
et

e 
In

ve
nt

or
ie

s
$0

 1
44

  I
nt

er
 P

ro
gr

am
 D

ue
 F

ro
m

$0
$0

$0

 1
42

  P
re

pa
id

 E
xp

en
se

s 
an

d 
O

th
er

 A
ss

et
s

$2
59

,8
85

 1
43

  I
nv

en
to

rie
s

$1
1,

39
6

 1
61

  L
an

d
$1

,9
80

,1
61

$2
,0

27
,1

64
$1

,1
72

,6
92

 1
45

  A
ss

et
s 

H
el

d 
fo

r 
S

al
e

 1
50

  T
ot

al
 C

ur
re

nt
 A

ss
et

s
$6

09
,4

31
$1

,8
68

,8
29

$4
,5

61
,0

28

 1
64

  F
ur

ni
tu

re
, E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
 M

ac
hi

ne
ry

 -
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
io

n
$9

2,
00

1
$

62
0,

29
0

 1
65

  L
ea

se
ho

ld
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

 1
62

  B
ui

ld
in

gs
$9

,8
19

,2
15

$1
9,

22
2,

93
4

$6
,4

04
,0

76

 1
63

  F
ur

ni
tu

re
, E

qu
ip

m
en

t &
 M

ac
hi

ne
ry

 -
 D

w
el

lin
gs

$4
27

,5
94

$2
,0

5
5,

74
9

$5
11

,9
28

 1
68

  I
nf

ra
st

ru
ct

ur
e

 1
60

  T
ot

al
 C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
s,

 N
et

 o
f A

cc
um

ul
at

ed
 D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n

$5
,4

25
,9

08
$1

1,
03

7,
37

3
$4

,0
11

,1
77

 1
66

  A
cc

um
ul

at
ed

 D
ep

re
ci

at
io

n
-$

6,
89

3,
06

3
-$

12
,2

68
,4

74
-$

4,
69

7,
80

9

 1
67

  C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s

 1
72

  N
ot

es
, L

oa
ns

, &
 M

or
tg

ag
es

 R
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

- 
N

on
 C

ur
re

nt
 -

 P
as

t D
ue

 1
73

  G
ra

nt
s 

R
ec

ei
va

bl
e 

- 
N

on
 C

ur
re

nt

 1
71

  N
ot

es
, L

oa
ns

 a
nd

 M
or

tg
ag

es
 R

ec
ei

va
bl

e 
- 

N
on

-C
ur

re
nt

$5
0,

00
0

 1
80

  T
ot

al
 N

on
-C

ur
re

nt
 A

ss
et

s
$5

,4
25

,9
08

$1
1,

03
7,

37
3

$4
,0

61
,1

77

 1
74

  O
th

er
 A

ss
et

s

 1
76

  I
nv

es
tm

en
ts

 in
 J

oi
nt

 V
en

tu
re

s

 2
90

  T
ot

al
 A

ss
et

s 
an

d 
D

ef
er

re
d 

O
ut

flo
w

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

$6
,0

50
,9

04
$

12
,9

06
,2

02
$8

,7
11

,0
22

 2
00

  D
ef

er
re

d 
O

ut
flo

w
 o

f R
es

ou
rc

es
$1

5,
56

5
$8

8,
81

7

 3
13

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
 >

90
 D

ay
s 

P
as

t D
ue

 3
11

  B
an

k 
O

ve
rd

ra
ft

 3
12

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
 <

=
 9

0 
D

ay
s

$0
$5

66
,6

51

Page 64



$4
8,

78
2

$4
8,

78
2

$4
1,

61
2

$1
20

,7
50

$1
20

,7
50

$7
8,

74
1

$7
8,

74
1

$6
,4

00
$2

83
,8

11
$2

83
,8

11

$1
,1

29
$8

92
,5

89
$1

,0
05

,3
28

$1
,0

05
,3

28

$2
8,

54
0

$3
41

,0
94

$3
41

,0
94

$3
90

$4
05

,6
42

$4
65

,0
67

$4
65

,0
67

$1
11

,3
69

$2
96

,4
19

$2
96

,4
19

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$3

6,
45

9
$5

58
,6

23
$8

92
,5

89
$0

$3
,2

06
,6

43
$3

,2
06

,6
43

$3
67

,6
92

$1
6,

81
4,

40
3

$1
6,

81
4,

40
3

$2
$6

61
$1

,3
40

$1
,3

40

$6
,1

30
$1

7,
80

1
$1

7,
80

1

$2
76

,2
08

$2
,1

97
,8

48
$2

,1
97

,8
48

$0
$0

$0
$3

67
,6

94
$2

82
,9

99
$0

$0
$1

9,
03

1,
39

2
$1

9,
03

1,
39

2

$0
$0

$0
$4

04
,1

53
$8

41
,6

22
$8

92
,5

89
$0

$2
2,

23
8,

03
5

$2
2,

23
8,

03
5

$8
5,

62
4

$3
12

,0
64

$3
12

,0
64

$0
$0

$6
1,

89
4

$5
5,

95
8

$0
$0

$3
,8

33
,0

45
$3

,8
33

,0
45

$0
$0

$7
8,

39
6

$1
14

,6
50

$0
$0

$4
70

,0
71

$4
70

,0
71

$0
$0

$1
,9

77
,7

01
$2

09
,5

44
-$

29
3,

89
0

$0
$0

$5
,2

43
,1

54
$5

,2
43

,1
54

$0
$0

$1
,9

77
,7

01
$3

49
,8

34
-$

12
3,

28
2

$0
$0

$9
,5

46
,2

70
$9

,5
46

,2
70

$0
$0

$1
,9

77
,7

01
$7

53
,9

87
$8

03
,9

64
$8

92
,5

89
$0

$3
2,

09
6,

36
9

$3
2,

09
6,

36
9

 3
21

  A
cc

ru
ed

 W
ag

e/
P

ay
ro

ll 
T

ax
es

 P
ay

ab
le

$4
8,

78
2

 3
25

  A
cc

ru
ed

 In
te

re
st

 P
ay

ab
le

$7
8,

74
1

 3
31

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
 -

 H
U

D
 P

H
A

 P
ro

gr
am

s

 3
22

  A
cc

ru
ed

 C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
- 

C
ur

re
nt

 P
or

tio
n

$1
2,

25
6

$6
6,

88
2

 3
24

  A
cc

ru
ed

 C
on

tin
ge

nc
y 

Li
ab

ili
ty

 3
41

  T
en

an
t S

ec
ur

ity
 D

ep
os

its
$4

1,
15

0
$1

89
,1

24
$4

7,
13

7

 3
42

  U
ne

ar
ne

d 
R

ev
en

ue
$1

0,
39

1
$7

6,
18

1
$2

5,
03

8

 3
32

  A
cc

ou
nt

 P
ay

ab
le

 -
 P

H
A

 P
ro

je
ct

s

 3
33

  A
cc

ou
nt

s 
P

ay
ab

le
 -

 O
th

er
 G

ov
er

nm
en

t

 3
45

  O
th

er
 C

ur
re

nt
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
$3

8,
78

6
$1

0,
11

8
$1

0,
13

1

 3
46

  A
cc

ru
ed

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

- 
O

th
er

$5
2,

91
1

$1
9,

65
6

$1
12

,4
83

 3
43

  C
ur

re
nt

 P
or

tio
n 

of
 L

on
g-

te
rm

 D
eb

t -
 C

ap
ita

l P
ro

je
ct

s/
M

or
tg

ag
e 

R
ev

en
ue

 
$3

12
,5

54

 3
44

  C
ur

re
nt

 P
or

tio
n 

of
 L

on
g-

te
rm

 D
eb

t -
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

B
or

ro
w

in
gs

 3
10

  T
ot

al
 C

ur
re

nt
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
$1

55
,4

94
$6

86
,3

74
$8

77
,1

04

 3
47

  I
nt

er
 P

ro
gr

am
 -

 D
ue

 T
o

$0
$0

 3
48

  L
oa

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 C
ur

re
nt

 3
53

  N
on

-c
ur

re
nt

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s 

- 
O

th
er

$5
4

$6
23

 3
54

  A
cc

ru
ed

 C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 A
bs

en
ce

s 
- 

N
on

 C
ur

re
nt

$1
,8

06
$9

,8
65

 3
51

  L
on

g-
te

rm
 D

eb
t, 

N
et

 o
f C

ur
re

nt
 -

 C
ap

ita
l P

ro
je

ct
s/

M
or

tg
ag

e 
R

ev
en

ue
$1

6,
38

1,
71

1
$6

5,
00

0

 3
52

  L
on

g-
te

rm
 D

eb
t, 

N
et

 o
f C

ur
re

nt
 -

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
B

or
ro

w
in

gs

 3
57

  A
cc

ru
ed

 P
en

si
on

 a
nd

 O
P

E
B

 L
ia

bi
lit

ie
s

$5
5,

35
7

$1
,8

66
,2

83

 3
50

  T
ot

al
 N

on
-C

ur
re

nt
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
$5

7,
16

3
$1

6,
38

1,
76

5
$1

,9
41

,7
71

 3
55

  L
oa

n 
Li

ab
ili

ty
 -

 N
on

 C
ur

re
nt

 3
56

  F
A

S
B

 5
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s

 4
00

  D
ef

er
re

d 
In

flo
w

 o
f R

es
ou

rc
es

$2
8,

74
5

$1
97

,6
95

 3
00

  T
ot

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s
$2

12
,6

57
$1

7,
06

8,
13

9
$2

,8
18

,8
75

 5
11

.4
  R

es
tr

ic
te

d 
N

et
 P

os
iti

on
$1

72
,2

03
$1

04
,8

22
$0

 5
12

.4
  U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

N
et

 P
os

iti
on

$2
11

,3
91

$1
,3

90
,1

33
$1

,7
48

,2
75

 5
08

.4
  N

et
 In

ve
st

m
en

t i
n 

C
ap

ita
l A

ss
et

s
$5

,4
25

,9
08

-$
5,

65
6,

89
2

$3
,9

46
,1

77

 6
00

  T
ot

al
 L

ia
bi

lit
ie

s,
 D

ef
er

re
d 

In
flo

w
s 

of
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 a
nd

 E
qu

ity
 -

 N
et

 
$6

,0
50

,9
04

$1
2,

90
6,

20
2

$8
,7

11
,0

22

 5
13

  T
ot

al
 E

qu
ity

 -
 N

et
 A

ss
et

s 
/ P

os
iti

on
$5

,8
09

,5
02

-$
4,

16
1,

93
7

$5
,6

94
,4

52

Page 65



S
ub

m
is

si
on

 T
yp

e:
 

14
.P

H
C

 P
ub

lic
 

H
ou

si
ng

 C
A

R
E

S
 

A
ct

 F
un

di
ng

14
.8

96
 P

IH
 F

am
ily

 
S

el
f-

S
uf

fic
ie

nc
y 

P
ro

gr
am

8 
O

th
er

 F
ed

er
al

 
P

ro
gr

am
 1

10
.4

15
 R

ur
al

 
R

en
ta

l H
ou

si
ng

 
Lo

an
s

14
.8

71
 H

ou
si

ng
 

C
ho

ic
e 

Vo
uc

he
rs

14
.H

C
C

 H
C

V
 

C
A

R
E

S
 A

ct
 

F
un

di
ng

10
.4

27
 R

ur
al

 
R

en
ta

l A
ss

is
ta

nc
e 

P
ay

m
en

ts
S

ub
to

ta
l

E
LI

M
T

ot
al

$1
47

,6
00

$6
,7

89
,9

38
$6

,7
89

,9
38

$1
2,

66
8

$1
35

,6
16

$1
35

,6
16

$0
$0

$0
$1

60
,2

68
$0

$0
$0

$6
,9

25
,5

54
$0

$6
,9

25
,5

54

$1
04

,4
38

$3
0,

76
4,

36
9

$5
1,

27
1

$0
$3

1,
45

1,
83

4
$3

1,
45

1,
83

4

$0
$0

$0

$2
8,

01
2

$9
5,

92
3

$1
23

,9
35

$1
23

,9
35

$1
17

$3
2

$8
83

$2
,3

92
$2

,3
92

$2
8,

62
2

$2
8,

62
2

$2
8,

62
2

$8
,4

45
$0

$1
,0

36
,4

87
$1

,0
66

,2
54

$1
,0

66
,2

54

-$
9,

93
8

-$
9,

93
8

$0
$1

12
,8

83
$1

17
$1

88
,3

12
$3

1,
83

0,
36

1
$5

1,
27

1
$9

5,
92

3
$3

9,
58

8,
65

3
$0

$3
9,

58
8,

65
3

$1
5,

39
3

$4
26

,6
31

$0
$7

01
,5

62
$7

01
,5

62

$2
8,

36
1

$7
0,

90
2

$7
0,

90
2

$8
,2

48
$4

13
,3

58
$5

45
,5

59
$5

45
,5

59

$7
79

$9
24

$2
2,

57
8

$8
0,

77
4

$8
0,

77
4

$4
56

$1
1,

60
5

$1
1,

60
5

$8
3

$5
70

$5
70

$2
,3

60
$4

67
,2

91
$1

,3
68

,6
40

$1
,3

68
,6

40

$1
7,

11
5

$1
7,

11
5

$0
$3

,1
39

$0
$2

5,
02

1
$1

,3
58

,3
02

$0
$0

$2
,7

96
,7

27
$0

$2
,7

96
,7

27

$8
3,

36
8

$8
3,

36
8

$8
3,

36
8

$2
1,

58
6

$2
1,

58
6

$2
1,

58
6

$0
$1

04
,9

54
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$1
04

,9
54

$0
$1

04
,9

54

$2
,3

70
$2

31
,3

75
$2

31
,3

75

$2
,0

43
$9

4,
60

5
$9

4,
60

5

$1
3,

80
0

$5
06

,5
85

$5
06

,5
85

$1
6,

52
4

$2
8,

18
2

$2
8,

18
2

$0
$0

$0
$3

4,
73

7
$0

$0
$0

$8
60

,7
47

$0
$8

60
,7

47

P
ro

je
ct

 T
ot

al
6.

2 
C

om
po

ne
nt

 
U

ni
t -

 B
le

nd
ed

1 
B

us
in

es
s 

A
ct

iv
iti

es

 7
03

00
  N

et
 T

en
an

t R
en

ta
l R

ev
en

ue
$5

33
,3

72
$4

,8
35

,3
64

$1
,2

73
,6

02

H
A

 O
f P

ie
rc

e 
C

ou
nt

y 
 (

W
A

05
4)

T
ac

om
a,

 W
A

En
tit

y 
W

id
e 

R
ev

en
ue

 a
nd

 E
xp

en
se

 S
um

m
ar

y

 A
ud

ite
d/

S
in

gl
e 

A
ud

it 
   

   
   

F
is

ca
l Y

ea
r 

E
nd

: 
12

/3
1/

20
20

 7
06

00
  H

U
D

 P
H

A
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ra

nt
s

$5
31

,7
56

 7
04

00
  T

en
an

t R
ev

en
ue

 -
 O

th
er

$2
3,

99
6

$6
8,

99
9

$2
9,

95
3

 7
05

00
  T

ot
al

 T
en

an
t R

ev
en

ue
$5

57
,3

68
$4

,9
04

,3
63

$1
,3

03
,5

55

 7
07

20
  A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee

 7
07

30
  B

oo
k 

K
ee

pi
ng

 F
ee

 7
06

10
  C

ap
ita

l G
ra

nt
s

 7
07

10
  M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ee

 7
07

00
  T

ot
al

 F
ee

 R
ev

en
ue

 7
07

40
  F

ro
nt

 L
in

e 
S

er
vi

ce
 F

ee

 7
07

50
  O

th
er

 F
ee

s

 7
12

00
  M

or
tg

ag
e 

In
te

re
st

 In
co

m
e

 7
13

00
  P

ro
ce

ed
s 

fr
om

 D
is

po
si

tio
n 

of
 A

ss
et

s 
H

el
d 

fo
r 

S
al

e

 7
08

00
  O

th
er

 G
ov

er
nm

en
t G

ra
nt

s

 7
11

00
  I

nv
es

tm
en

t I
nc

om
e 

- 
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d

$1
31

$9
96

$2
33

 7
15

00
  O

th
er

 R
ev

en
ue

$5
,9

62
$1

5,
36

0

 7
16

00
  G

ai
n 

or
 L

os
s 

on
 S

al
e 

of
 C

ap
ita

l A
ss

et
s

$1
,7

01
-$

10
,0

22
-$

1
,6

17

 7
13

10
  C

os
t o

f S
al

e 
of

 A
ss

et
s

 7
14

00
  F

ra
ud

 R
ec

ov
er

y

 9
11

00
  A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
S

al
ar

ie
s

$6
0,

33
7

$1
39

,3
99

$5
9,

80
2

 7
20

00
  I

nv
es

tm
en

t I
nc

om
e 

- 
R

es
tr

ic
te

d

 7
00

00
  T

ot
al

 R
ev

en
ue

$1
,0

96
,9

18
$4

,8
95

,3
37

$1
,3

17
,5

31

 9
13

10
  B

oo
k-

ke
ep

in
g 

F
ee

 9
14

00
  A

dv
er

tis
in

g 
an

d 
M

ar
ke

tin
g

 9
12

00
  A

ud
iti

ng
 F

ee
s

$9
,9

26
$2

3,
39

8
$9

,2
17

 9
13

00
  M

an
ag

em
en

t F
ee

 9
17

00
  L

eg
al

 E
xp

en
se

$2
,2

41
$2

,1
89

$6
,7

19

 9
18

00
  T

ra
ve

l
$4

87

 9
15

00
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
ns

 -
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
$1

1,
96

5
$

72
,4

58
$3

9,
53

0

 9
16

00
  O

ffi
ce

 E
xp

en
se

s
$2

,6
17

$3
5,

24
4

$1
8,

63
2

 9
10

00
  T

ot
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
- 

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

$3
03

,6
47

$7
72

,6
71

$3
33

,9
4

7

 9
18

10
  A

llo
ca

te
d 

O
ve

rh
ea

d
$2

16
,5

61
$4

87
,8

12
$1

94
,6

16

 9
19

00
  O

th
er

$1
2,

17
1

$4
,9

44

 9
22

00
  R

el
oc

at
io

n 
C

os
ts

 9
23

00
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 T
en

an
t S

er
vi

ce
s

 9
20

00
  A

ss
et

 M
an

ag
em

en
t F

ee

 9
21

00
  T

en
an

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

S
al

ar
ie

s

 9
31

00
  W

at
er

$3
,3

47
$1

95
,5

09
$3

0,
14

9

 9
24

00
  T

en
an

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
- 

O
th

er

 9
25

00
  T

ot
al

 T
en

an
t S

er
vi

ce
s

$0
$0

$0

 9
34

00
  F

ue
l

 9
35

00
  L

ab
or

 9
32

00
  E

le
ct

ric
ity

$7
71

$4
7,

75
5

$4
4,

03
6

 9
33

00
  G

as

 9
38

00
  O

th
er

 U
til

iti
es

 E
xp

en
se

$1
1,

65
8

 9
30

00
  T

ot
al

 U
til

iti
es

$4
,2

60
$6

38
,6

97
$1

83
,0

53

 9
36

00
  S

ew
er

$1
42

$3
83

,7
75

$1
08

,8
68

 9
37

00
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 U
til

iti
es

Page 66



$5
63

$5
55

,7
82

$5
55

,7
82

$9
37

$0
$1

82
,4

33
$1

82
,4

33

$1
7,

33
1

$8
21

,2
15

$8
21

,2
15

$4
71

$1
64

,0
82

$1
64

,0
82

$0
$0

$0
$1

9,
30

2
$0

$0
$0

$1
,7

23
,5

12
$0

$1
,7

23
,5

12

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$1
2,

02
7

$1
2,

02
7

$8
,5

09
$8

,5
09

$3
34

$6
9

$1
,7

88
$2

7,
63

7
$2

7,
63

7

$9
,7

19
$8

3,
18

8
$3

15
,2

47
$3

15
,2

47

$0
$3

34
$0

$9
,7

88
$8

4,
97

6
$0

$0
$3

63
,4

20
$0

$3
63

,4
20

$4
,4

56
$2

86
$1

6,
78

3
$2

86
,7

01
$5

02
,7

82
$5

02
,7

82

$0
$3

3
$0

$3
3

$3
3

$9
$9

7,
65

1
$9

7,
65

1

$1
4,

95
1

$1
4,

95
1

$0
$4

,4
56

$3
19

$1
6,

79
2

$2
86

,7
01

$0
$0

$6
15

,4
17

$0
$6

15
,4

17

$2
8,

36
4

$9
81

,0
01

$9
81

,0
01

$0
$0

$0
$2

8,
36

4
$0

$0
$0

$9
81

,0
01

$0
$9

81
,0

01

$0
$1

12
,8

83
$3

19
$1

34
,0

04
$1

,7
29

,9
79

$0
$0

$7
,4

45
,7

78
$0

$7
,4

45
,7

78

$0
$0

-$
20

2
$5

4,
30

8
$3

0,
10

0,
38

2
$5

1,
27

1
$9

5,
92

3
$3

2,
14

2,
87

5
$0

$3
2,

14
2,

87
5

$2
8,

40
9,

37
1

$9
5,

92
3

$2
8,

50
5,

29
4

$2
8,

50
5,

29
4

$9
33

,5
25

$9
33

,5
25

$9
33

,5
25

$0
$2

0,
28

7
$1

9,
03

7
$1

,5
93

,7
23

$1
,5

93
,7

23

$0
$1

12
,8

83
$3

19
$1

54
,2

91
$3

1,
09

1,
91

2
$0

$9
5,

92
3

$3
8,

47
8,

32
0

$0
$3

8,
47

8,
32

0

$0
$0

$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0

$2
,9

31
,3

49
$2

,9
31

,3
49

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$2

,9
31

,3
49

$0
$2

,9
31

,3
49

$0
$0

-$
20

2
$3

4,
02

1
$7

38
,4

49
$5

1,
27

1
$0

$4
,0

41
,6

82
$0

$4
,0

41
,6

82

 9
42

00
  O

rd
in

ar
y 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 -

 M
at

er
ia

ls
 a

nd
 O

th
er

$3
6,

04
5

$1
16

,6
95

$2
8,

75
6

 9
43

00
  O

rd
in

ar
y 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

$7
3,

22
6

$5
3

8,
51

0
$1

92
,1

48

 9
41

00
  O

rd
in

ar
y 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 a
nd

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 -

 L
ab

or
$1

03
,9

51
$3

29
,2

80
$1

21
,9

88

 9
51

00
  P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
La

bo
r

 9
45

00
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 O
rd

in
ar

y 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
$4

3,
27

6
$7

4,
77

9
$4

5,
55

6

 9
40

00
  T

ot
al

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

$2
56

,4
98

$1
,0

59
,2

64
$3

88
,4

48

 9
55

00
  E

m
pl

oy
ee

 B
en

ef
it 

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

ns
 -

 P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s

 9
50

00
  T

ot
al

 P
ro

te
ct

iv
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s
$0

$0
$0

 9
52

00
  P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
O

th
er

 C
on

tr
ac

t C
os

ts

 9
53

00
  P

ro
te

ct
iv

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

- 
O

th
er

 9
61

20
  L

ia
bi

lit
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
$8

,5
09

 9
61

30
  W

or
km

en
's

 C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n
$3

,9
13

$1
5,

58
8

$5
,9

45

 9
61

10
  P

ro
pe

rt
y 

In
su

ra
nc

e
$1

2,
02

7

 9
62

00
  O

th
er

 G
en

er
al

 E
xp

en
se

s
$6

0,
31

0
$9

1,
68

1
$4

2,
56

5

 9
61

40
  A

ll 
O

th
er

 In
su

ra
nc

e
$7

,5
94

$1
70

,9
03

$4
3,

84
3

 9
61

00
  T

ot
al

 in
su

ra
nc

e 
P

re
m

iu
m

s
$3

2,
04

3
$1

86
,4

91
$4

9,
78

8

 9
64

00
  B

ad
 d

eb
t -

 T
en

an
t R

en
ts

$1
4,

95
1

 9
65

00
  B

ad
 d

eb
t -

 M
or

tg
ag

es

 9
62

10
  C

om
pe

ns
at

ed
 A

bs
en

ce
s

$0
$0

 9
63

00
  P

ay
m

en
ts

 in
 L

ie
u 

of
 T

ax
es

$5
2,

91
1

$3
1,

57
5

$1
3,

15
6

 9
60

00
  T

ot
al

 O
th

er
 G

en
er

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

$1
28

,1
72

$1
23

,2
56

$5
5,

72
1

 9
66

00
  B

ad
 d

eb
t -

 O
th

er

 9
68

00
  S

ev
er

an
ce

 E
xp

en
se

 9
67

30
  A

m
or

tiz
at

io
n 

of
 B

on
d 

Is
su

e 
C

os
ts

 9
67

00
  T

ot
al

 In
te

re
st

 E
xp

en
se

 a
nd

 A
m

or
tiz

at
io

n 
C

os
t

$0
$9

52
,6

37
$

0

 9
67

10
  I

nt
er

es
t o

f M
or

tg
ag

e 
(o

r 
B

on
ds

) 
P

ay
ab

le
$9

52
,6

37

 9
67

20
  I

nt
er

es
t o

n 
N

ot
es

 P
ay

ab
le

 (
S

ho
rt

 a
nd

 L
on

g 
T

er
m

)

 9
70

00
  E

xc
es

s 
of

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
R

ev
en

ue
 o

ve
r 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
E

xp
en

se
s

$3
72

,2
98

$1
,1

62
,3

21
$3

06
,5

74

 9
69

00
  T

ot
al

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
E

xp
en

se
s

$7
24

,6
20

$3
,7

33
,0

16
$1

,0
10

,9
57

 9
72

00
  C

as
ua

lty
 L

os
se

s 
- 

N
on

-c
ap

ita
liz

ed

 9
73

00
  H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 9
71

00
  E

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 9
75

00
  F

ra
ud

 L
os

se
s

 9
76

00
  C

ap
ita

l O
ut

la
ys

  -
 G

ov
er

nm
en

ta
l F

un
ds

 9
73

50
  H

A
P

 P
or

ta
bi

lit
y-

In

 9
74

00
  D

ep
re

ci
at

io
n 

E
xp

en
se

$3
38

,9
08

$8
66

,6
78

$3
48

,8
13

 9
00

00
  T

ot
al

 E
xp

en
se

s
$1

,0
63

,5
28

$4
,5

99
,6

94
$1

,3
59

,7
70

 9
77

00
  D

eb
t P

rin
ci

pa
l P

ay
m

en
t -

 G
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l F
un

ds

 9
78

00
  D

w
el

lin
g 

U
ni

ts
 R

en
t E

xp
en

se

 1
00

30
  O

pe
ra

tin
g 

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fr

om
/to

 P
rim

ar
y 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t

 1
00

40
  O

pe
ra

tin
g 

T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 fr

om
/to

 C
om

po
ne

nt
 U

ni
t

 1
00

10
  O

pe
ra

tin
g 

T
ra

ns
fe

r 
In

 1
00

20
  O

pe
ra

tin
g 

tr
an

sf
er

 O
ut

 1
00

70
  E

xt
ra

or
di

na
ry

 It
em

s,
 N

et
 G

ai
n/

Lo
ss

 1
00

80
  S

pe
ci

al
 It

em
s 

(N
et

 G
ai

n/
Lo

ss
)

$2
,9

31
,3

49

 1
00

50
  P

ro
ce

ed
s 

fr
om

 N
ot

es
, L

oa
ns

 a
nd

 B
on

ds

 1
00

60
  P

ro
ce

ed
s 

fr
om

 P
ro

pe
rt

y 
S

al
es

 1
00

93
  T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 b
et

w
ee

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 a

nd
 P

ro
je

ct
 -

 In

 1
00

94
  T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 b
et

w
ee

n 
P

ro
je

ct
 a

nd
 P

ro
gr

am
 -

 O
ut

 1
00

91
  I

nt
er

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xc

es
s 

C
as

h 
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

In

 1
00

92
  I

nt
er

 P
ro

je
ct

 E
xc

es
s 

C
as

h 
T

ra
ns

fe
r 

O
ut

 1
00

00
  E

xc
es

s 
(D

ef
ic

ie
nc

y)
 o

f T
ot

al
 R

ev
en

ue
 O

ve
r 

(U
nd

er
) 

T
ot

al
 E

xp
en

se
s

$3
3,

39
0

$2
95

,6
43

$2
,8

89
,1

10

 1
01

00
  T

ot
al

 O
th

er
 fi

na
nc

in
g 

S
ou

rc
es

 (
U

se
s)

$0
$0

$2
,9

31
,3

49

Page 67



$0
$0

$0
$2

6,
51

9
$0

$0
$0

$3
21

,9
13

$0
$3

21
,9

13

$0
$0

$1
,9

77
,9

03
$3

13
,5

74
-$

91
2,

99
3

$0
$0

$5
,5

04
,8

55
$0

$5
,5

04
,8

55

$0
$0

$2
,2

39
$5

1,
26

2
-$

51
,2

71
-$

26
7

-$
26

7

-$
23

7,
93

2
-$

23
7,

93
2

-$
23

7,
93

2

$1
14

,6
50

$1
14

,6
50

$1
14

,6
50

0
0

0
24

0
35

53
2

0
24

0
45

54
0

0
45

54
0

0
0

0
24

0
31

73
1

0
24

0
41

49
9

0
41

49
9

$2
21

,3
49

$2
21

,3
49

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

$0
$0

 1
10

40
  P

rio
r 

P
er

io
d 

A
dj

us
tm

en
ts

, E
qu

ity
 T

ra
ns

fe
rs

 a
nd

 C
or

re
ct

io
n 

of
 E

rr
or

s
$0

-$
22

7
-$

2,
27

0

 1
10

50
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 C
om

pe
ns

at
ed

 A
bs

en
ce

 B
al

an
ce

 1
10

20
  R

eq
ui

re
d 

A
nn

ua
l D

eb
t P

rin
ci

pa
l P

ay
m

en
ts

$0
$2

95
,3

94
$0

 1
10

30
  B

eg
in

ni
ng

 E
qu

ity
$5

,7
76

,1
12

-$
4,

45
7,

35
3

$2
,8

07
,6

12

 1
10

80
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 S
pe

ci
al

 T
er

m
/S

ev
er

an
ce

 B
en

ef
its

 L
ia

bi
lit

y

 1
10

90
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 fo

r 
D

ou
bt

fu
l A

cc
ou

nt
s 

- 
D

w
el

lin
g 

R
en

ts

 1
10

60
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 C
on

tin
ge

nt
 L

ia
bi

lit
y 

B
al

an
ce

 1
10

70
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 U
nr

ec
og

ni
ze

d 
P

en
si

on
 T

ra
ns

iti
on

 L
ia

bi
lit

y

 1
11

80
  H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
is

ta
nc

e 
P

ay
m

en
ts

 E
qu

ity

 1
11

00
  C

ha
ng

es
 in

 A
llo

w
an

ce
 fo

r 
D

ou
bt

fu
l A

cc
ou

nt
s 

- 
O

th
er

 1
11

70
  A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
F

ee
 E

qu
ity

 1
12

70
  E

xc
es

s 
C

as
h

$2
21

,3
49

 1
16

10
  L

an
d 

P
ur

ch
as

es
$0

 1
11

90
  U

ni
t M

on
th

s 
A

va
ila

bl
e

14
88

57
24

23
16

 1
12

10
  N

um
be

r 
of

 U
ni

t M
on

th
s 

Le
as

ed
14

81
55

72
22

35

 1
16

40
  F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t -
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
P

ur
ch

as
es

$0

 1
16

50
  L

ea
se

ho
ld

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 P
ur

ch
as

es
$0

 1
16

20
  B

ui
ld

in
g 

P
ur

ch
as

es
$0

 1
16

30
  F

ur
ni

tu
re

 &
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t -
 D

w
el

lin
g 

P
ur

ch
as

es
$0

 1
39

01
  R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t H

ou
si

ng
 F

ac
to

r 
F

un
ds

$0

 1
16

60
  I

nf
ra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
P

ur
ch

as
es

$0

 1
35

10
  C

F
F

P
 D

eb
t S

er
vi

ce
 P

ay
m

en
ts

$0

Page 68



Office of the Washington State Auditor sao.wa.gov 

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN FOR FINDINGS REPORTED UNDER 

UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

January 1, 2020 through December 31, 2020 

 This schedule presents the corrective action planned by the Housing Authority for findings 

reported in this report in accordance with Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 

200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 

Awards (Uniform Guidance).  

Finding ref number: 

2020-001 

Finding caption: The Housing Authority’s internal controls over 

accounting and financial reporting were inadequate to ensure 

accurate and timely reporting 

Name, address, and telephone of Housing Authority contact person: 

James Stretz, Executive Director 

Pierce County Housing Authority 

603 Polk Street 

Tacoma, WA 98444 

Phone: 253-620-5400

Corrective action the auditee plans to take in response to the finding: 

The Authority acknowledges that financial reporting has not been correct, and the inaccuracies 

have not been critical to third parties’ reliability on the performance and financial strength of the 

Authority. We share SAO’s frustration with correcting reports prepared by a nationally 

recognized PHA consulting firm acting as our CFO and then reviewed by a closely aligned CPA 

firm in Oklahoma engaged by our consultant. Compounding our challenge is the threat by Pierce 

County to merge us into Tacoma Housing, making it difficult to attract qualified talent to bring 

financial expertise in-house. PCHA plans to improve in four areas to correct this deficiency. 

1) Increase search efforts for a qualified Director of Finance bring the expertise in house

2) Continue to push the County to conclude their study merging PCHA. 3)  Replace our Consultant

with a Washington CPA firm with experience performing accounting functions specifically

Controller functions for PHAs in the state of Washington, and experience with our soon-to-be

installed consolidated software package

4)Increase efforts to have finance staff attend training using the report from HUD hired outside

consultants providing us technical training on Risk Management
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Anticipated date to complete the corrective action: 

• Immediately- increase our search efforts for a qualified Director of Finance willing to

take a position with an Authority that could cease to exist because of a merger. Hire

target date: 9-30-22

• Immediately continue to encourage the County Executive to conclude merger study

and use new Board members appointed in our efforts. This factor is not in our control;

therefore, the completion date is unknown.

• Replace Consultant-Publish RFP by May 1 to hire a new Washington based, HFA and

Yardi experienced CPA firm by May 1, 2022, to act as Controller and assist in training

staff until we bring expertise in-house

• Immediately require finance staff and ED to complete 36 hours of professional training

by the end of 2022
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ABOUT THE STATE AUDITOR’S OFFICE 

The State Auditor’s Office is established in the Washington State Constitution and is part of the 

executive branch of state government. The State Auditor is elected by the people of Washington 

and serves four-year terms. 

We work with state agencies, local governments and the public to achieve our vision of increasing 

trust in government by helping governments work better and deliver higher value. 

In fulfilling our mission to provide citizens with independent and transparent examinations of how 

state and local governments use public funds, we hold ourselves to those same standards by 

continually improving our audit quality and operational efficiency, and by developing highly 

engaged and committed employees. 

As an agency, the State Auditor’s Office has the independence necessary to objectively perform 

audits, attestation engagements and investigations. Our work is designed to comply with 

professional standards as well as to satisfy the requirements of federal, state and local laws. The 

Office also has an extensive quality control program and undergoes regular external peer review 

to ensure our work meets the highest possible standards of accuracy, objectivity and clarity. 

Our audits look at financial information and compliance with federal, state and local laws for all 

local governments, including schools, and all state agencies, including institutions of higher 

education. In addition, we conduct performance audits and cybersecurity audits of state agencies 

and local governments, as well as state whistleblower, fraud and citizen hotline investigations. 

The results of our work are available to everyone through the more than 2,000 reports we publish 

each year on our website, www.sao.wa.gov. Additionally, we share regular news and other 

information via an email subscription service and social media channels. 

We take our role as partners in accountability seriously. The Office provides training and technical 

assistance to governments both directly and through partnerships with other governmental support 

organizations. 

Stay connected at sao.wa.gov  

 Find your audit team

 Request public records

 Search BARS manuals (GAAP and

cash), and find reporting templates

 Learn about our training workshops

and on-demand videos

 Discover which governments serve you

— enter an address on our map

 Explore public financial data

with the Financial Intelligence Tool

Other ways to stay in touch 

 Main telephone:

(564) 999-0950

 Toll-free Citizen Hotline:

(866) 902-3900

 Email:

webmaster@sao.wa.gov
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